
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\78-920 and 58-2 Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 24, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meetings of April 26 and May 10, 2022. 
 
Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-920 and 58-2, relating to the abatement of 
zoning violations. 
This ordinance amendment is proposed by City Attorney Matt Dregne to clean up the abatement of 
zoning violations language in the ordinances to allow staff to more effectively abate violations.  A 
public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance is provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Page 1 of 3 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Sections 78-920 and 58-2 of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to  


the abatement of zoning violations. 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date Introduced:   


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Section 78-920 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended to provide as follows: 


 


Sec. 78-920  Violations and penalties. 


 


(1) Violation of this chapter.  It isshall be unlawful to construct or use any land, engage in 


any development activity (including disruption of protected vegetation), or construct or 


use any structure, land or water in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter, or 


otherwise neglect, refuse or fail to comply with this chapters requirements.  Any person 


who violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of the chapter shall, upon 


conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties set forth in subection (2),  below, and in 


addition, shall pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney and other fees 


involved in the case.  Each day a violation exists or continues shall constitute a separate 


offense.   


 


(2) Penalties.  Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this chapter 


fails to comply with the provisions of this Code or any order of the zoning 


administrator shall, upon convictionfiscation thereofore, be subject to a forfeiture 


pursuant to section 1-3 of this Code.forfeit a fee according to the city’s current deposit 


schedule.  Each day a violation exists or continues shall constitute a separate offense.   


 


(3) Stoughton promulgated correction of violation.  In addition to any other penalty 


imposed by this Subchapter for a violation of the provisions of the chapter, the city 


reserves and maintains the continued right to abate violations of this chapter.  


 


a. Hazardous condition caused by violation of this chapter.   If the zoning 


administrator determines that a violation of this chapter exists, and further 


determines that the nature of such violation poses a great and immediate danger 


to the public health, safety, peace, morals or decency, the zoning administrator 


shall cause the violation to be abated. Costs associated with said abatement shall 







Page 2 of 3 


be charged to the owner of the property on which said violation has occurred per 


subsection (c), below. The zoning administrator is hereby authorized to abate a 


violation of this chapter. 


 


b. Non-hazardous condition caused by violation of this chapter.  If the zoning 


administrator determines that a violation of this chapter exists, and further 


determines that the nature of such violation is not such as to pose great and 


immediate danger to the public health, safety, peace, morals or decency, the 


zoning administrator shall serve written notice by registered mail on the current 


owner of the property (as indicated by current City of Stoughton tax records) on 


which said violation is occurring to remove said violation within ten working 


days. If such violation is not removed within such ten working days, the zoning 


administrator shall cause the violation to be abated per subsection (a), above. 


Costs associated with said abatement shall be charged to the owner of the 


property on which said violation has occurred per subsection (c), below. 


 


c. Cost of abatement. In addition to any forfeiture imposed by this subchapter for a 


violation of the provisions of this chapter, the cost of abating a violation of this 


chapter per subsections (a) and/or (b), above, may be collected as a debt from 


the owner of the property on which said violation has occurred. An account of 


the expenses incurred by the city to abate the violation shall be kept and such 


expenses may be charged to and paid by the property owner. Notice of the bill 


for abatement of the violation shall be mailed to the last known address of said 


property owner by Registered Mail, and shall be payable within 30 calendar 


days from the receipt thereof. Within 60 days after such costs and expenses are 


incurred and remain unpaid, the city clerk shall enter such charges onto the tax 


roll as a special tax as provided by State Statute 66.615(5). 


 


2. Section 58-2 of the of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended to provide as follows: 


 


Sec. 58-2.  Public nuisance defined. 


A public nuisance is a thing, act, occupation, condition or use of property which shall 


continue for such length of time as to: 


Any of the following is a public nuisance:   


(a) Any act, occupation, condition or use of property which shall continue for such length of 


time as to:  


(1) Substantially annoy, injure or endanger the comfort, health, repose or safety of the 


public.  


(2) In any way render the public insecure in life or in the use of property.  


(3) Greatly offend the public morals or decency.  


(4) Unlawfully and substantially interfere with, obstruct, or tend to obstruct or render 


dangerous for passage any street, alley, highway, navigable body of water or other 


public way or the use of public property.  







Page 3 of 3 


(b)  A violation of this Chapter 58. 


(c) A violation of Section 10-318. 


(d) A violation of this Code that continues for more than one day, or that is repeated more than 


one time. 


 


3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 041122.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as 


indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, April 11, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


 


In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


   321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 


https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 925 1876 2219 Passcode: 788399 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any 
written comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of March 14, 2022.   


3. Council Representative Report. 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.  


5. Conditional use permit for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at Cheeser’s, 


183/187 E. Main Street.  (Postponed from March 14, 2022) 


 Request to reopen public hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


6. Ordinance to annex approximately 20 acres from the Town of Pleasant Springs (Moe 


Farm). 


 Recommendation to Council 


7. Resolution to proceed with an Urban Service Area Amendment (USAA) application for 


approximately 20 acres of land at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier 


Moraine Drive. 


 Recommendation to Council 



https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 041122.docx 


 


8. Certified Survey Map (CSM) for property located at the northeast corner of Williams 


Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive. 


 Recommendation to Council 


9. Planned Development – General Development Plan for property located at the northeast 


corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Dive. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


10. Conditional Use Permit Application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 


2125 McComb Road, Unit 100. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


11. Planned Development-Specific Implementation Plan at 51 West Development - Lot 18. 


12. Ordinance amendments to sections 78-920 and 58-2. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


13. Walmart Landscaping Update. 


14. Future agenda items. 


15. Adjournment. 
 


COMMISSIONERS:  
Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair   Tom Robinson   Todd Barman 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 
Leadership Team     Council members  Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne   Stoughton Hub  Area Townships  


Peter Sveum     Michael Stacey  Chamber of Commerce 


smonette@stolib.org    Spencer Meier   wstotv981@gmail.com 


Ryan Quam     Brian Johnson   Joe Miller 


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com     


Tami McCullough    Brett Riemen   Brian Spanos 


Bob Dvorak     Kevin Lord   Alan Sheets 


David Stack     Fred Swed   Jim Ternus 


   


            


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 


accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In 


addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have 


access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com






 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, March 14, 2022 at 6:00 pm 


Virtual Meeting 


 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Todd Barman; 


Phil Caravello; Al Farrow; Tom Majewski; and Tom Robinson 


Members Absent: None 


 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator; Dave Ehlinger, Finance Director 


 


Guests: Ed and Becky Guzman; Brian Johnson; Alan Sheets; David Stack; Fred Swed; Rob 


Fisher; David Ferris; Mathew Yetz; Menno Huiser; Callie LaPoint; Kerry Enger; Kent 


Schroeder; Gianna Catanzaro; Sarah Ebert; James T; Ed Jones; and Peter Herbst. 


 


1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Plan Commission meeting minutes of February 14, 2022.   


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated the Common Council approved R-35-22 and Ordinances 5, 6, 7 and 8 


of 2022. 


 


4. Status of Current Developments.   


Scheel gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined in the packet of 


materials.  There were no questions. 


 


5. Public Hearing to consider a proposed project plan, boundaries and creation of 


Tax Incremental District No. 9  (See the Public Hearing Notice which was 


published on February 24, 2022 & March 3, 2022).  


Mayor Swadley introduced the creation of TID 9. 


 


David Ferris gave an overview presentation of TID 9. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


03/14/22 


Page 2 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


 


6. Consideration and possible action on “Resolution Designating Proposed 


Boundaries and Approving a Project Plan for Tax Incremental District No. 9, City 


of Stoughton, Wisconsin” 


Motion by Schumacher to approve the resolution for TID 9 as presented, 2nd by 


Farrow.  Motion carried 5-1.  (Caravello abstained and Majewski voted no) 


 


7. Conditional use permit for and Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 


Cheeser’s, 183/187 E. Main Street. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


Ed Guzman spoke in favor. 


 


Gianna Catanzaro spoke in favor. 


 


Alan Sheets is in favor of the request but would like Cheeser’s customers to only use 


their internal stairway and use the stairway between the buildings as an emergency 


exit only. 


 


Brian Johnson, owner/applicant, spoke in favor of the request and stated the plan is 


for customers to use the internal stairway for the 2nd floor use. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Barman questioned the individual uses proposed.  Stacey stated the uses are restaurant 


and tavern-like but deferred to applicant/owner Brian Johnson to explain. 


 


Brian Johnson discussed several types of possible uses such as cooking classes, 


tastings, and serving glasses of wine during classes. 


 


Caravello questioned the times of use.  Alan Sheets stated he is not concerned about 


the time of use rather only the use of the stairway between the buildings. 


 


Motion by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional 


use as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   


 


Motion by Barman to amend the motion to require the stairway between the 


buildings be used for emergency exit only from the 2nd floor door, 2nd by Caravello. 


 


There was discussion about how to legally restrict access to the stairway between the 


buildings from the 2nd floor. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


03/14/22 


Page 3 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


 


 


The motion to amend the original motion failed 3-4 (Majewski, Robinson and Barman 


voted in favor) 


 


There was further discussion about how to restrict access to the stairway. 


 


Farrow suggested staff work on a resolution and bring back for approval.  Scheel 


stated staff can work with the Fire Department and/or the tenant to figure out a 


resolution. 


 


Motion by Majewski to postpone this agenda item until staff figures out a resolution, 


2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 6-1 (Robinson voted no). 


 


8. Annexation of approximately 38.46 acres from the Town of Dunkirk (Teigen 


Farm). 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the annexation 


as presented, 2nd by Barman.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


9. Planned Development – Concept Plan for property located at the northeast 


corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive. 


Rob Fisher gave an overview presentation of the Emmi Roth business and proposed 


project. 


 


Barman questioned if the use would produce any undesirable smells. Rob Fisher 


stated the cheese products would not be made at this facility rather cheese will be 


repackaged so there should not be any odors. 


 


Schumacher asked if retail sales of product is planned.  Rob Fisher stated retail is not 


planned at this time. 


 


Farrow questioned the lack of roof solar panels on the building concept.  Rob Fisher 


stated the solar panels are still in the design phase. 


 


Schumacher questioned the location of the planned building expansion area.  Rob 


Fisher stated the expansion area is to the north of the proposed building. 


 


Caravello stated it is nice to see the planned sustainability components and questioned 


if the Fitchburg operation would move to Stoughton.  Rob Fisher stated that is the 


plan. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


03/14/22 


Page 4 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


 


Caravello questioned the truck routes to the facility.  Rob Fisher stated they are 


working with a logistics company to determine appropriate routes and there is no plan 


for trucks to drive through Stoughton. 


 


Scheel gave an overview of the next steps including annexation; urban service area 


amendment; rezoning and site plan review. 


 


10. Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional CSM at 3060 Shadyside Drive, Town of Pleasant 


Springs. 


Scheel explained the ETJ CSM request. 


 


Caravello questioned the vacation of Cherry Drive.  Scheel stated it appears Cherry 


Drive was part of an older development that was never used. 


 


Stacey noted that Cherry Drive was vacated and split between property owners then 


Kent Schroeder bought the other half of the vacated street to add to his parcel. 


 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the resolution as 


presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


11. Zoning ordinance amendment to section 78-405(4). 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Barman suggested removing the new language in c. since it is already covered in b. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance 


amendment as presented, 2nd by Majewski.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


12. Discuss meeting in-person. 


Mayor Swadley questioned if everyone is ready to meet in-person. 


 


Schumacher and Farrow are ready for in-person.  Robinson would like both in-person 


and Zoom options. 


 


Mayor Swadley stated we’ll plan on hybrid meetings starting in April. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


03/14/22 


Page 5 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


 


13. Future agenda items. 


Scheel stated the Emmi Roth annexation; Ordinance amendments; Teigen Farm 


Development will be on future agenda’s. 


 


Majewski would like an update for when Walmart plans to update their landscaping.  


Stacey has been in contact with the landscape company that plans to do the work and 


will report back. 


 


Cheeser’s conditional use. 


 


14. Adjournment. 


Motion by Robinson to adjourn at 7:26 pm, 2nd by Majewski.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Michael P. Stacey 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2022\Status of development 041122.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 


 


 


 


Date:  April 5, 2022 


 


To:  Plan Commission Members 


   


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


  Michael Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


Subject: Status of Current Developments  


 


Status of Development: 


 Sinobec Resources – Landscaping and lighting  


 Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving left to do 


 Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction 


 Mixed Use Building at 700 Nygaard Street –Landscaping left to do in spring. 


 Riverfront Development – SIP approved 


 2501 Jackson Street - under construction  


 Dvorak - 51 West Development – Final Plat not yet recorded, GDP not yet effective 


 Dollar Tree – Landscaping, lighting, dumpster enclosure and stormwater pond corrections in 


process 


 Pizza Hut - 1400 US Hwy 51 – Landscaping left to do in spring 


 314 W. Main Street – under construction 


 Weebleworld 2nd building – nearing completion 


 DC Sheriff SE Precinct Office – Landscaping left to do in spring 


 Walmart landscaping left to do in spring 


 Kettle Park West – Meadows Addition Final Plat not yet recorded 


 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/






T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\183 E Main CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 6, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meeting of April 26, 2022. 
 
Proposed conditional use permit request to allow an Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use 
(restaurant/tavern type uses) at 183/187 E. Main Street.  (Postponed on March 15, 2022) 
This request is to allow restaurant/tavern type uses to be located on the first and second floor at 
183/187 E. Main Street.  The owner is proposing to expand the uses to the 2nd floor to include 
various classes, demonstrations, tastings and other events as schedule until 9:00 pm.  A public 
hearing was held on March 15, 2022.  The request was postponed to allow staff to research 
requirements to allow emergency exiting only from Cheeser’s 2nd floor door to the hallway between 
the buildings and out to the Main Street exit.  Stoughton Fire Department staff confirmed the Main 
Street access door between the buildings can be signed to limit access for residential tenants.  
Cheeser’s 2nd floor exit door to the hallway can be locked on the hallway side and a sign can be 
placed on the interior of the door stating “Emergency Exit Only”.  This door must be kept unlocked 
from the inside.  A recommendation to Council is necessary.  We received a letter requesting the 
Plan Commission reopen the public hearing to allow more testimony from the adjacent property 
owner including some requested conditions.  The Plan Commission will need to decide whether to 
allow the public hearing to reopen and what conditions to recommend to the Common Council for 
consideration.  The proposed use is not similar to any other tavern use in the City rather the 
proposal is for classes and other events with alcohol consumption.  Ultimately, there could be noise 
on the second floor without the serving of alcohol.  The resolution and related materials are 
provided.   
  
 
   
 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\183 E. Main Street CUP 2022.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use 
(restaurant/tavern type uses) at 183/187 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends approval  - 0 


Fiscal Impact: None. 
 


File Number: R- -2022 Date Introduced: 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on March 14, 2022 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and 
reviewed the proposed conditional use permit application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use 
(restaurant/tavern type uses) at 183/187 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2022 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission continued their review of the 
proposed conditional use permit application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use 
(restaurant/tavern type uses) at 183/187 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan; 


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of- 
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development; 


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\183 E. Main Street CUP 2022.docx 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant/tavern type uses) at 183/187 E. Main Street is hereby 
approved with the following conditions: 


• The Cheeser’s 2nd floor exit to the hallway between the buildings shall be signed and used as an 
Emergency Exit Only; 


• The Main Street access door between the buildings (Cheesers/Woodland Studios) shall not be 
used as a customer entrance for Cheeser’s business operation; 


• Alcohol shall not be served after 9:00 pm on the second floor. 
 


 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote    


 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 


 
 


 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 
 


 
Council Action:  Override Vote    


 
 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, March 14, 
2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a Conditional Use 
Permit Application by J & S Nordic Enterprises LLC (Cheesers).  The applicant is requesting 
conditional use approval for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 183 E. Main Street, 
Stoughton, WI. 53589.    The property description is as follows: 
Parcel Number: 281/0511-081-2111-2 
Description for tax purposes:  ORIGINAL PLAT BLOCK 27 W 22 FT OF E 44 FT LOT 1 
*This property description is for tax purposes. It may be abbreviated. For the complete legal 
description please refer to the deed.  
 
See additional information including location map at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
You can join the meeting via Zoom or Phone below: 
https://zoom.us/j/94609974784?pwd=eUUyV3g3anpKSzRkQWVHTUtHT3NFQT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 946 0997 4784  Passcode: 427325 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 
5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written comments will be forwarded on to the 
“Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.   
 
     
Published February 17 and 24, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Cheesers CUP Notice 2022.doc 



https://zoom.us/j/94609974784?pwd=eUUyV3g3anpKSzRkQWVHTUtHT3NFQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 
STROEBEL LAW, LLC 
30 W. Mifflin Street, Suite 1001 
Madison, WI 53703-9500 


 
Christopher Stroebel 


Telephone: (608) 441-8100 
 christopher.stroebel@stroeblaw.com 


April 4, 2022 
 
 
 
By First Class Mail 
and Email (mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us) 
 
City of Stoughton 
Plan Commission 
Attn: Michael Stacey 
 Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 City of Stoughton Department of Planning & Development 
 207 S. Forest Street 
 Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit to allow and Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use 


(restaurant/tavern type) at 183/187 E. Main Street 
 
 Request to Reopen Public Hearing 
 
Dear Plan Commissioners: 
 
I represent Saige Properties, LLC (“Saige”), the owner of the two-story building at 195 E. Main 
Street, located at the southwest corner of E. Main Street and S. Forrest Street. Saige’s building is 
a mixed-use property with commercial and residential tenants. Woodland Studios’ fine art gallery 
is located on the first floor of the building, facing E. Main Street. There are two residential 
apartment units in the building located on the second floor.  
 
This letter concerns the conditional use permit sought by J & S Nordic Enterprises LLC d/b/a 
Cheesers Lokal Market (“Cheesers”) to operate various events involving the consumption of 
alcohol on the second floor the property owned by A&B Keystone Properties, LLC at 183/187 E. 
Main Street. Cheesers proposes various alcohol-related gatherings on its second floor, include 
wine and cheese pairing, wine release events, special events with “industry experts” and “tasting 
events for wine, beer, cider, bourbon, etc.” Cheesers proposes to expand its business hours from 
5pm to 9pm to hold these events. 
 
Cheesers’ building is right next to Saige’s building. Although you would never guess it from 
reading Cheesers’ conditional use application, the tavern-like “events” that Cheesers proposes to 
hold would take place mere feet from two second-floor residential apartments owned and managed 
by Saige, across a narrow hallway between the buildings. The second-floor residential units in 



mailto:christopher.stroebel@stroeblaw.com





City of Stoughton 
Plan Commission 
April 4, 2022 
 
Page 2 
 
Saige’s building are accessible only by stairs leading to the hallway. The hallway is also accessible 
from the space where Cheesers proposes to hold its “events,” through two doors that are located 
directly across the hallway from the doors to the residential units. 
 
Saige respectfully requests that the Commission:  
 


(1) Reopen the public hearing held on March 14, 2022. Saige’s owner, Alan Sheets, 
attended the March 14 meeting but was allowed only three minutes to provide facts and 
information to the Commission about the effect of the proposed use on Saige’s 
property. Although Mr. Sheets was able to convey the gist of Saige’s concerns with the 
proposed use, he was not provided with sufficient time to share all pertinent 
information relating to Cheesers’ application. 
 


(2) If, after consideration of the facts and information presented by Saige, the Commission 
approves Cheesers’ application, it should do so only as a limited conditional use.  


 
Cheesers’ proposal for tavern-like “events” would mark a departure from the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and have a substantial and undue adverse impact on the second-
floor residences in Saige’s building, located just a few feet away. Cheesers’ application 
lacks many important details, such as the frequency of events, that make it impossible 
to gauge the impact of the proposed use, even when reasonable conditions are imposed. 
Thus, the proposed use should be limited to a six-month period to determine the full 
extent of the undesirable impact and whether it would be feasible to mitigate any impact 
with additional conditions. 


 
 
The Close Relationship and Connection Between Cheesers’ and Saige’s Properties. 
 
A brief explanation of the buildings’ architecture is helpful in understanding the proximity of the 
events that Cheesers proposes to hold to the residences. The buildings are connected by a four-
foot-wide hallway that runs between the buildings. There are two flights of stairs at each end of 
the hallway leading to the ground floor, one on the front, north side between the buildings and the 
second on the rear, south side of buildings. Each staircase is 43 inches wide with twenty-one steps, 
longer than most modern stairs given the tall ceilings on the first floors of each building. 
 
Each building has two doors opening into the second-floor hallway, situated directly across one 
another. The first set of doors are located at the top of the south stairway, the second set at the top 
of the north stairway. The two doors in Saige’s building are the only entrances to two residential 
apartments which have been continuously occupied by tenants for many years. The doors on 
Cheesers’ property open into the space that Cheesers proposes to use for its events involving the 
consumption of alcohol. 
 







City of Stoughton 
Plan Commission 
April 4, 2022 
 
Page 3 
 
A plan showing the hallway is enclosed. The plan is taken from Cheesers’ application and has been 
amended to clearly show the relationship between the second-floor spaces of the buildings. (Saige 
does not adopt the dashed line shown on the plan as determinative of the boundaries between the 
properties.) 
 
 
The Substantial and Undue Adverse Impact of the Proposed Use. 
 
A key purpose in the consideration of a conditional use is that it “will not create undesirable 
impacts on nearby properties.” City of Stoughton Ord. § 78-905. It is not hard to see how booze-
fueled festivities would have a substantial and undue adverse impact on the residences just across 
the hall. Events involving alcohol are noisy. Most people have had the unpleasant experience at 
some point of loud, drunk neighbors whether at their home or while staying at a motel. 
 
Few people want to live next to a tavern, even an occasion tavern, let alone a tavern located just 
across the hall from your home. The doors from Cheesers’ space to the adjoining hallway are 
decades old. Even if all doors remain shut (as they should), the noise from the events will certainly 
be audible in the nearby apartments. 
 
Saige is concerned that the noise and disruption of Cheesers’ second-floor events will disturb its 
tenants and potentially make the apartments less attractive, potentially resulting in stagnant rent 
and perhaps less desirable tenants. One tenant has already approached Mr. Sheets to express 
concern after learning from Cheesers that it would be holding events directly across from her 
apartment. 
 
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recognizes the historic downtown as one of its strengths and must 
be developed in a way that encourages people to live downtown. Downtown residents, not 
occasional partygoers, will ensure that the City’s downtown not only continues to be viable but 
thrives. The Comprehensive Plan expressly embraces this goal: “The City should encourage living 
opportunities in the downtown area.” (Id., p. Appx. D-5) In Stoughton’s historic downtown, the 
Comprehensive Plan envisions “[a] transition of land uses within most buildings from retail and/or 
service uses on the ground floors to office to residential on upper floors.” (Id., p. 55.) 
 
After purchasing the building in 2016, Saige invested a significant amount of its own money to 
fully renovate the two apartments, including a shared laundry room on the second floor. Saige is 
exactly the type of property owner that the City’s Comprehensive Plan says that the City wants to 
attract and encourage. 
 
Cheesers’ proposal to hold tavern events in its second-floor space, in close proximity to downtown 
residences, is not consistent with the City’s vision and plan for its historic downtown. Residents, 
not drunk patrons, make a viable community. Cheeser’s application is not in harmony with City’s 
vision of development that respects downtown residents and promotes residential growth. The 







City of Stoughton 
Plan Commission 
April 4, 2022 
 
Page 4 
 
Commission should impose conditions and limits on the use proposed by Cheesers to protect the 
neighboring residences. 
 
Cheesers’ Failure to Meet Its Burden of Providing  
“Substantial Evidence” for the Proposed Use 
 
Cheesers’ application emphasizes commercial development while ignoring the balanced approach 
to growth that the City has adopted. The application offers absolutely nothing—no evidence or 
even an acknowledgement of the issue—to address the impact of the proposed use on the 
neighboring residences. 
 
Instead, the application repeatedly makes bald statements without any support, such as “[t]he 
proposed use will have no impact on the surrounding area” and fails to even mention the 
neighboring residents—of whom which Cheesers owners are very well aware—while opining, 
again without any support that “the proposed use has no impact on the surrounding buildings[.]”  
 
Cheesers’ failure to even acknowledge the obvious impact of its proposed use is not sufficient for 
it to grain approval. As the applicant, Cheesers has the burden of demonstrating, through the 
presentation of “substantial evidence,” that the proposed conditional use “will not create 
undesirable impacts on nearby properties.” Wis. Stat. § 62.23(de); City of Stoughton Ord. § 78-
905(1)(a).  
 
Cheesers’ application makes no effort to address the impact of its proposed use on the neighboring 
residences. As a result, Cheesers’ application does not meet the standard necessary for approval.  
 
When he learned about the proposed use, Mr. Sheets attempted to discuss the matter with Cheesers’ 
owners, Brian Johnson and Amy Brashi. Cheesers agreed that it would use the stairway inside its 
building for second-floor operations. Unfortunately, Cheesers did not disclose the extent to which 
its proposal would involve alcohol (describing the events as wine and cheese tasting) and declined 
to reach a written agreement concerning conditions on its use. 
 
 
Saige’s Proposal 
 
Saige supports the development of downtown Stoughton and does not outright oppose Cheesers’ 
proposed use. The Commission should impose sufficient limits and conditions on the use to protect 
the quiet enjoyment of the adjoining residences. After careful consideration of the matter, Saige 
proposes the following: 
 


1. The two exit doors from Cheesers second-floor space should be marked appropriately as 
“Emergency Exit Only” and should be locked from the outside (hallway side) and remain 
open from the inside for emergency egress. Cheesers must take full responsibility to ensure 
that its customers do not stray into the hallway. 







City of Stoughton 
Plan Commission 
April 4, 2022 
 
Page 5 
 


 
2. Other than exit in the case of an emergency, Cheesers customers and deliveries must use 


the interior stairway inside the Cheesers building. 
 


3. Saige intends to label the front Main Street entrance to the hallway “residential access 
only” and install a lock system on the rear entrance to the hallway. Building owners and 
tenants will be provided with access. If the Commission approves a conditional use permit, 
these steps should be included in the permit as conditions intended to mitigate possible 
confusion about the use of the stairways and hallway. 
 


4. Cheesers hours should not go any later than 9pm and events on the second floor should be 
limited to nonconsecutive Friday or Saturday nights no more than twice per month. 
 


5. The conditional use should be limited to a period of six months to determine the extent of 
the noise, disruption and other undesirable impacts on the residences. Any additional 
concerns can be taken up by the property owners and the Commission can revisit the 
proposed use upon further application by Cheesers. 


 
Thank you for your attention to Saige Properties, LLC’s concerns and your consideration of this 
matter. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
STROEBEL LAW, LLC 


 
Christopher J. Stroebel 
 
Encl. 
 
Cc: Alan Sheets (w/Encl.) 































        MAIN   FLOORSECOND    FLOOR







S 
A


ca
de


m
y 


St


E South St


W Jefferson St


E Main St


Giles St


St


H
ill


 S
t


S 
D


iv
is


io
n 


St


St


North St


Fo
rto


n


W Washington St


Clay St


S 
W


at
er


 S
t


S 
Fr


an
kl


in
 S


t


Nelson St


Giles St
S 


Pr
ai


rie
 S


t


W Washington St


N
 F


ra
nk


S 
M


ad
is


on
 S


t


Garfield St


n St


Oak St


E Jefferson St


S 
Fi


fth
 S


t


E Washington St


S 
Fo


rr
es


t S
t


N
 


C
hu


rc
h 


St


S 
Si


xt
h 


St


S 
Se


ve
nt


h 
St


S 
Fi


fth
 S


t


N
D


S Lynn St


M
an


ill
a 


N
Fo


rre
st


St


Park St


Mai n -P
ag


e
C


t


Ei
gh


th
 S


t


N
 M


ad N
 P


H
ill


si
de


X



mstacey

Highlight







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 


February 16, 2022 
 
J & S Nordic Enterprises LLC 
Brian Johnson 
183 E. Main Street 
Stoughton, WI.  53589 
 
 
Dear Mr. Johnson: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed conditional uses for Cheeser’s, 183 E. Main Street, 
Stoughton, WI.  (Application provided 2/2//22)  A conditional use public hearing (indoor 
commercial entertainment uses) is planned for the Plan Commission meeting of March 14, 2022.   
 
1. The property at 183 E. Main Street is zoned CB - Central Business.  All current and 


proposed uses are allowable per zoning code. 
 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses such as a tavern use and training studio are permitted 
as a conditional use.  Conditional use permit application submitted. 
 


2. Indoor Commercial Entertainment is defined as follows:   
Description: Indoor commercial entertainment land uses include all land uses which provide 
entertainment services primarily within an enclosed building. Outdoor seating or patio areas 
associated with a proposed indoor commercial entertainment land use shall be allowed 
subject to city approval of a site plan showing any such proposed outdoor seating or patio 
area. Such activities often have operating hours which extend significantly later than most 
other commercial land uses. Examples of such land uses include restaurants, taverns, 
theaters, health or fitness centers, all forms of training studios (dance, art, martial arts, etc.), 
bowling alleys, arcades, roller rinks, and pool halls.  The proposed uses meet this 
definition.   


 
3. Regulations related to Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses are as follows:  


• If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no 
customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible, 
of a residentially zoned property.  N/A 
 


• Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of the 
property abutting residentially zoned property (see section 78-610).  N/A 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


• Parking requirements: One space per every three patron seats or lockers (whichever 
is greater); or one space per three persons at the maximum capacity of the 
establishment; (whichever is greater).  N/A is the downtown area zoned Central 
Business. 


 
4. The proposed use and zoning meets the intent of the City Comprehensive Plan. 


 
 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
  
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\183-187 e. main street\cup request 2.8.22\cheesers cup review 2022.doc 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
03/14/22 
Page 2 of 5 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


 


6. Consideration and possible action on “Resolution Designating Proposed 
Boundaries and Approving a Project Plan for Tax Incremental District No. 9, City 
of Stoughton, Wisconsin” 
Motion by Schumacher to approve the resolution for TID 9 as presented, 2nd by 
Farrow.  Motion carried 5-1.  (Caravello abstained and Majewski voted no) 
 


7. Conditional use permit for and Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 
Cheeser’s, 183/187 E. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Ed Guzman spoke in favor. 
 
Gianna Catanzaro spoke in favor. 
 
Alan Sheets is in favor of the request but would like Cheeser’s customers to only use 
their internal stairway and use the stairway between the buildings as an emergency 
exit only. 
 
Brian Johnson, owner/applicant, spoke in favor of the request and stated the plan is 
for customers to use the internal stairway for the 2nd floor use. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Barman questioned the individual uses proposed.  Stacey stated the uses are restaurant 
and tavern-like but deferred to applicant/owner Brian Johnson to explain. 
 
Brian Johnson discussed several types of possible uses such as cooking classes, 
tastings, and serving glasses of wine during classes. 
 
Caravello questioned the times of use.  Alan Sheets stated he is not concerned about 
the time of use rather only the use of the stairway between the buildings. 
 
Motion by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional 
use as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   
 
Motion by Barman to amend the motion to require the stairway between the 
buildings be used for emergency exit only from the 2nd floor door, 2nd by Caravello. 
 
There was discussion about how to legally restrict access to the stairway between the 
buildings from the 2nd floor. 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
03/14/22 
Page 3 of 5 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  03-14-22.docx 


 


 
The motion to amend the original motion failed 3-4 (Majewski, Robinson and Barman 
voted in favor) 
 
There was further discussion about how to restrict access to the stairway. 
 
Farrow suggested staff work on a resolution and bring back for approval.  Scheel 
stated staff can work with the Fire Department and/or the tenant to figure out a 
resolution. 
 
Motion by Majewski to postpone this agenda item until staff figures out a resolution, 
2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 6-1 (Robinson voted no). 
 


8. Annexation of approximately 38.46 acres from the Town of Dunkirk (Teigen 
Farm). 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the annexation 
as presented, 2nd by Barman.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


9. Planned Development – Concept Plan for property located at the northeast 
corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive. 
Rob Fisher gave an overview presentation of the Emmi Roth business and proposed 
project. 
 
Barman questioned if the use would produce any undesirable smells. Rob Fisher 
stated the cheese products would not be made at this facility rather cheese will be 
repackaged so there should not be any odors. 
 
Schumacher asked if retail sales of product is planned.  Rob Fisher stated retail is not 
planned at this time. 
 
Farrow questioned the lack of roof solar panels on the building concept.  Rob Fisher 
stated the solar panels are still in the design phase. 
 
Schumacher questioned the location of the planned building expansion area.  Rob 
Fisher stated the expansion area is to the north of the proposed building. 
 
Caravello stated it is nice to see the planned sustainability components and questioned 
if the Fitchburg operation would move to Stoughton.  Rob Fisher stated that is the 
plan. 



mstacey

Highlight







CHEESERS INNER STAIRWAY 
TO 2ND FLOOR 



mstacey

Underline







MAIN STREET ENTRANCE BETWEEN THE 
BUILDINGS


(MAY HAVE SIGNAGE TO LIMIT ACCESS 
TO APARTMENT TENANTS)







CHEESERS 2ND FLOOR DOOR TO UPPER HALLWAY


(DOOR CAN BE LOCKED ON THE OUTSIDE, ALWAYS 
OPEN FROM INSIDE, AND SIGNAGE TO BE PLACED 


STATING "EMERGENCY EXIT ONLY") 





		ADP7D36.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, March 14, 2022 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Emmi Roth Annexation Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 4, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of April 12 and April 26, 2022  
 
Annexation request for property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and 
Glacier Moraine Drive.  
Emmi Roth is proposing to acquire approximately 20 acres as described above from the Moe 
Family Farm.  The Moe Family has authorized this request to annex the land to the City of 
Stoughton for this development.  A recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance and 
annexation documents are provided. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Moe Farm Annexation 2022.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS 


APPROVAL OF A PORTION OF THE TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS TO THE CITY OF 
STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  -   
Fiscal Impact:       Unknown 


File Number: O -  - 2022 Date Introduced: 
 


 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. Moe Family Farm, LLC owns land in the Town of Pleasant Springs as described in Exhibit A 


and shown in Exhibit B (the “Territory”) and is seeking to annex the Territory by unanimous 
approval to the City of Stoughton, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


 
B. The City of Stoughton Plan Commission has recommended that the Territory be annexed to the 


City, and that the Territory be assigned a temporary zoning classification of RH - Rural 
Holding. 
 


C. The proposed annexation will need to be reviewed by the Wisconsin Department of 
Administration to determine if the annexation is in the public interest. 
 


D. The population of the proposed land is 0. 
 


E. The annexation represents approximately 20 acres from the Town of Pleasant Springs. 
 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, 


does ordain as follows: 
 


ORDINANCE 
 
1. Recitals.  The above recitals are material to and are incorporated in this Ordinance. 


 
2. Territory Annexed.  The Territory is annexed by unanimous approval to the City of 


Stoughton pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2). 


3. Effect of Annexation.  From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the Territory 
shall be a part of the City of Stoughton for any and all purposes provided by law, and all 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Moe Farm Annexation 2022.doc 


persons coming or residing within such Territory shall be subject to all ordinances, 
rules, and regulations governing the City of Stoughton. 


4. Temporary Zoning Designation.  The Territory shall be temporarily zoned R-H Rural 
Holding. 


5. Ward Designation.  The Territory shall be added to Ward No. 3 of the City of 
Stoughton. 


6. Clerk Duties.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of and provide copies 
of this Ordinance in accordance with the applicable Wisconsin Statutes. 


7. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as 
provided by law. 
 
 


 
APPROVED: 
 
 
By:        
Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


APPROVED:  ___________ 
PUBLISHED: ___________ 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Moe Farm Annexation 2022.doc 


 
EXHIBIT A 


 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


 
Part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 and part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 and 
part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 all in 
Section 32, Township 6 North, Range 11 East, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County, Wisconsin, 
more fully described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the South 1/4 corner of said Section 32; 
Thence N 0° 00' 27" W, 743.37 feet along the west line of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
said Section 32 to the point of beginning; 
 
Thence, S 89° 22' 48" W, 42.02 feet to the westerly right-of-way line of Williams Drive; 
Thence, N 00° 01' 58" W, 880.05 feet along said westerly right-of-way line; 
Thence, N 89° 22' 48" E, 42.42 feet to the west line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said 
Section 32; 
Thence, continuing N 89° 22' 48" E, 238.59 feet; 
Thence, N 00° 01' 58" W, 25.00 feet; 
Thence, N 89° 22' 48" E, 682.27 feet; 
Thence, S 00° 01' 58" E, 905.05 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of Glacier Moraine Drive; 
Thence, S 89° 22' 48" W, 921.25 feet along said northerly right-of-way line to the point of beginning; 
 
Containing 864,744 square feet (19.852 acres), more or less including areas within Williams Drive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Annexation Ordinances\Moe Farm Annexation 2022.doc 


EXHIBIT B 


 












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Emmi Roth USAA Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 4, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of April 12 
 
Urban Service Area Amendment (USAA) request for property located at the northeast corner 
of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive.  
Emmi Roth is proposing to develop approximately 20 acres as described above.  The proposed 
resolution will authorize an expansion of the Urban Service Area to extend City Services into this 
area.  The USAA application is under review with Capital Area Regional Plan Commission with a 
public hearing date set for May 12, 2022.  A recommendation to Council is necessary.  The 
resolution and USAA documents are provided. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Urban Service Area Resolution.doc 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


A Resolution finding that the expansion of the Stoughton Urban Service Area to 
include approximately 20 acres of land in the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine 


Drive is consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan and directs staff to submit a request 
for expanding the Stoughton Urban Service Area to include said lands. 


 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-  -2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, the City's Urban Service Area is the area in which denser, urban development is 
permitted and utilities such as City sewer and water are allowed; and 


WHEREAS, the City expects urban development to occur within an area located at the northeast 
corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive as outlined in Exhibit A: City of Stoughton Urban Service 
Area Amendment Application – April 2022; and 


WHEREAS, the amendment area adds approximately 20 acres of privately owned 
undeveloped land; and 


WHEREAS, the City has planned for expected urban growth within the proposed urban service 
expansion area; and 


WHEREAS, the City's Comprehensive Plan designates this area as an expansion area of the existing 
Business Park and the development planned for this area is consistent with this Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the Urban Service Area Amendment" will be consistent with all applicable land-use 
and environmental protection regulations and requirements; and 


WHEREAS, the Plan Commission recommends approval of expanding the Stoughton Urban Service 
Area at its April 11, 2022 meeting; 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton Common Council finds that the 
expansion of the Urban Service Area to include the approximately 20 acres at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and 
Glacier Moraine Drive is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan and furthermore directs staff to submit a 
request to expand the Stoughton Urban Service Area to include said property as outlined in Exhibit A: City of 
Stoughton Urban Service Area Amendment Application – April 2022. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton hereby requests that the Capital Area 
Regional Planning Commission consider and approve the requested amendment to the Urban Service Area. 
 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Urban Service Area Resolution.doc 


 


 
 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 


City of Stoughton 
Urban Service Area Amendment Application 


 
 


April 2022 
  



rjscheel

Typewritten Text

		



rjscheel

Typewritten Text

Exhibit A







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


 
Overview 
 
The following documentation was assembled to support the application for an amendment to the 
Stoughton Urban Service Area. 
 
The information contained in this document follows the Capital Area Regional Planning 
Commission’s (CARPC), “Urban Service Area Amendment Application Checklist”.  The City of 
Stoughton, Wisconsin has assembled the attached materials addressing the following. 
 
 


1. Plan Consistency and Need 
2. Intergovernmental Cooperation 
3. Land Use 
4. Natural Resources 
5. Utilities and Stormwater Management 


 
Attachments: 
 


Sheet 1:   Proposed Urban Service Area 
Sheet 2:   Proposed Land Use Map 
Sheet 3:   Existing Land Use Map 
Sheet 4:   Future Land Use Map 
Sheet 5:   Floodway, Wetlands, and Steep Slopes Map 
Sheet 6:   Soils Map 
Sheet 7:   Environmental Corridor 
Sheet 8:   Existing Sanitary Sewer Map 
Sheet 9:   Existing Water Main Map 
Sheet 10: Existing Storm Sewer Map 
Sheet 11: Draft Certified Survey Map 


 
 
 
 
  







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


Plan Consistency and Need 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Stoughton (City) requests approval for an Urban Service Area Amendment (USAA) to 
extend municipal water and sanitary sewer service to a 19-acre parcel within the Town of Pleasant 
Springs.  The subject property is located east of Williams Drive and north of Glacier Moraine 
Drive.  Sheet 1 illustrates the proposed Stoughton USAA area, including existing public right-of-
way. 
 
The subject property is surrounded by agriculture lands to the north, west and east.  To the south 
is an existing industrial park that will extend to include this parcel. 
 
For purposes of this application, the proposed expansion area is referred to as the “property”.  
The property incorporating this USAA is currently owned by the Moe Family Farm, LLC and is 
subject to a sales agreement with Emmi Roth USA (ERUSA).  ERUSA has been engaged with 
local staff regarding future planning for the property, resulting in the proposed land use map 
attached as Sheet 2.  The land is currently in the Town of Pleasant Springs; however, an 
annexation request to the Department of Administration has been submitted and is currently being 
considered. 
 
1.1 Comprehensive Plan 
 
The proposed USAA is consistent with the general goals and policies in the 2017 City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan.  The area is currently planned for future “Planned Industrial” land 
use, which is generally intended for high-quality indoor manufacturing, assembling and storage 
uses.  See the Existing Land Use Map, Sheet 3 for illustration of the land use.   
 
The proposed USAA advances more specific goals, objectives, and policies in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  These are discussed in more detail in Section 1.3 below. 
 
1.2 Neighborhood / Area Plans 
 
There are no neighborhood or special-area plans applicable to the subject property. 
 
1.3 Need for the Addition to the Stoughton USA 
 
The addition of the subject property to the Stoughton USA would allow for orderly development in 
the Stoughton Industrial Park area.  The proposed use is consistent with the future land use 
identified in the Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, which identifies this area as the logical area for 
phased expansion of this Planned Industrial land use. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan identifies that the priorities and overall planning goals include 
strengthening and diversifying the local job and tax base as well as promotion of efficient and 
sustainable development patterns. 
 
This amendment supports the City’s goals and economic prosperity goals including to continue 
to provide a strong supply of easy to access, serviced and developable land in the City devoted 
for industrial and commercial land uses.  More specifically, it aligns with policies such as reserving 
land east of Williams Drive for future Planned Industrial development. 
 







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


This amendment also supports the City’s goal of providing a diversified range of employment 
opportunities with particular focus on skilled professional and technical jobs. 
 
Intergovernmental Cooperation 
 
2.1 Notification of Adjacent Local Governmental Units 
 
The City has had informal communication with the Town of Pleasant Springs.  Upon approval of 
this application by City Council, a copy will be sent to the town requesting their formal comments 
on the proposed amendment.   
 
2.2  Adjacent Local Governmental Objections or Support of the Proposal 
 
As noted in Section 2.1, a copy of the proposed amendment application will be sent to the Town 
of Pleasant Springs for their comments following City Council approval of the application.  Upon 
receipt of those comments, they will be forwarded to CARPC staff.  At present we are aware of 
no objections to the proposed amendment.  The City understands CARPC staff will compile all 
objections and support for the USA Amendment. 
 
Land Use 
 
3.1 Proposed USAA Boundary Map 
 
The proposed USA boundary is indicated on the Proposed Urban Service Area Map, Sheet 1 of 
the appendix.  A draft certified survey map has been provided to illustrate the anticipated property 
boundaries that will define the USA boundary.  See Sheet 11. 
 
3.2 Existing and Proposed Land Uses 
 
The existing land use is Agricultural (19 acres).  The proposed land use is Planned Industrial (19 
acres).  A draft CSM is included in the appendix to describe the proposed parcel. 
 
3.3 Existing and Proposed Land Uses Map 
 
The existing and proposed land uses within the USAA is indicated on the Future Land Use Map, 
Sheet 4 of the appendix. 
 
Note that the proposed USAA expansion includes dedication of additional right-of-along the east 
side of Williams Drive for the frontage of the USAA expansion area.  An additional right-of-way 
width of 25 feet is being dedicated.  It is assumed that additional right-of-way will be dedicated 
along the west side of Williams Drive when future development occurs to attain an ultimate right-
of-way width of 100 feet. 
 
The existing shared use path that currently terminates at the intersection of Williams Drive and 
Glacier Moraine Drive will be extended to the north along the USAA expansion area.  This 
extension will provide opportunity for further extension and connection to the future “North Trail”.  
 
3.4 Housing 
 
There is no housing development planned within the proposed USAA. 
 







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


 
 
 
3.5 Development Staging 
 
All lands within the proposed USAA expansion area are anticipated to be developed over time, 
involving expansion of the proposed facility.  The subject property contains fewer than 100 acres 
and therefore the maps in the Appendix do not indicate any staging boundaries. 
 
Natural Resources 
 
4.1 Treatment of Natural Resources 
 
Refer to the attached Floodway, Wetlands, and Steep Slopes Map, Sheet 5 for information on 
environmentally sensitive features.  The land is characterized by generally flat topography that is 
higher on the northern portion of the site.  According to the Wisconsin DNR Surface Water Data 
Viewer, there is no mapped wetlands or wetland indicators present on the site.  This is also 
illustrated on the attached Soils Map, Sheet 5. 
 
Stormwater management plans for this area will be coordinated with the City of Stoughton and 
Dane County, as appropriate. 
 
4.2  Public Outlots:  Parks and Stormwater Management Facilities 
 
No public outlots are planned on the subject property now or in the future.  No park facilities are 
proposed, and stormwater management facilities will include both on-site and existing off-site 
regional detention located to the south of Glacier Moraine Drive.  These elements are illustrated 
on the Existing Storm Sewer Map, Sheet 10.   
 
4.3 + 4.4 Environmental Corridors 
 
The proposed stormwater management area is proposed to be approximately 1 acre.  Once the 
actual stormwater management areas are developed, it will be necessary to map these areas as 
Environmental Corridors at the time of sewer extension review.  This element is illustrated on the 
Environmental Corridor map, Sheet 7. 
 
Future development will need to comply with City policies that require the protection of 
environmentally sensitive lands, including surface and groundwater resources. 
 
5.1 Description and Map of Proposed Sanitary Sewer Extension to Amendment Area 
 
The proposed 19-acre industrial lot at the northeast corner of the Williams Drive/Glacier Moraine 
Drive intersection (the amendment area) is currently served by an 8-inch sanitary sewer lateral 
stub from an existing 10-inch sanitary sewer on Glacier Moraine Drive.  The entity on the proposed 
lot will be the only user connected to this existing 10-inch sanitary sewer.  The existing sanitary 
sewers are shown on the Existing Sanitary Sewer Map, Sheet 8. 
 
The existing 10-inch sanitary sewer flows west on Glacier Moraine Drive and connects to an 
existing 12-inch sanitary sewer on Williams Drive.  This 12-inch sanitary sewer, known as the 
Industrial Park Interceptor, generally flows to the south approximately 4,000 feet through the City 
of Stoughton’s business/industrial park to Industrial Circle.  An existing 15-inch sanitary sewer 







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


continues south approximately 600 feet from Industrial Circle and connects to the City’s 24-inch 
Trail Interceptor and Division Street Interceptor which continue approximately 8,000 feet south to 
the wastewater treatment facility. The Trail Interceptor/Division Street Interceptor is one of three 
main interceptors serving the City.  The existing interceptor sewers serving the amendment area 
are shown on the Existing Sanitary Sewer Map, Sheet 8. 
 
5.2 Estimated Average Daily and Peak Wastewater Flows for Amendment Area 
 
Existing sanitary sewers on Glacier Moraine Drive and Williams Drive were designed based on 
an average wastewater flow rate of 2,000 gallons per day per acre. A peak factor of 2.5 was 
applied to the average flow rate to obtain the peak flow rate.  Sanitary sewers are designed to 
convey peak flows. 
 
Based on the above criteria, the proposed 19-acre lot would generate an average flow of 38,000 
gallons per day and a peak flow of 95,000 gallons per day (0.06 cfs and 0.15 cfs, respectively). 
 
The entity on the proposed lot is expected to generate an average wastewater flow rate of 29,600 
gpd per day and a peak flow of 55,500 gallons per day.  This is well below the criteria used to size 
and analyze the sanitary sewers in the business park area.  
 
5.3 Current Average Daily Flow for Interceptor Sewer 
 
The amendment area is tributary to the City’s Industrial Park Interceptor on Industrial Circle.  This 
12-inch sanitary sewer laid at a slope of 0.22% has a limiting capacity of 1.67 cfs.  Based on 
approximately 144 acres of existing business/industrial park development tributary to this sewer, 
the estimated current average flow in the existing 12-inch sanitary sewer is 0.45 cfs.  The 
estimated current peak flow in the existing 12-inch sanitary sewer is 1.11 cfs, or approximately 66 
percent of the sewer’s maximum capacity. 
 
Interceptor sewers downstream of Industrial Circle are larger in size and capacity and are 
assumed to have the ability to serve the amendment area.   These existing interceptor sewers 
were not evaluated. 
 
The Stoughton wastewater treatment plant has a total design average flow capacity of 1.65 mgd.  
The current average daily flow is approximately 1.29 mgd. 
 
5.4 Interceptor Sewer Capacity to Serve the Amendment Area 
 
As discussed in the previous section, the existing 12-inch sanitary sewer on Industrial Circle has 
a limiting capacity of 1.67 cfs and an estimated current peak flow of 1.11 cfs.   The amendment 
area was planned for an expected additional peak flow contribution of 0.15 cfs.  Anticipated actual 
peak flow is 0.09 cfs.  The peak flow in the 12-inch sanitary sewer would increase to 1.26 cfs, or 
approximately 75 percent of the maximum pipe capacity.  Therefore, the existing 12-inch sanitary 
sewer appears to have sufficient capacity to serve the proposed amendment area.   
 
5.5 Map of Proposed Water Main Extension 
 
Existing 10-inch water mains are located on the Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive sides 
of the proposed business park lot (amendment area).  The proposed lot will be served by existing 
6-inch and 8-inch water service stubs on Glacier Moraine Drive.  The existing water mains are 
shown on the Existing Water Main Map, Sheet 9. 







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


 
 
 
5.6 Estimate of Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand from Amendment Area 
 
Based on a typical water use rate of 2,000 gpd per acre, the proposed 19-acre industrial lot will 
generate an estimated average daily water demand of 38,000 gpd.  Using a peaking factor of 2.5, 
the peak hourly demand for the amendment area is approximately 3,960 gallons per hour.   
 
5.7 Current Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand 
 
The existing average water use for the Stoughton water system is 1.512 million gallons per day 
(MGD), or 1,050 gallons per minute (gpm), with an actual maximum day historical (2019 data) 
usage of 2.752 MGD or 1,911 gpm.  The computer model of the water distribution system 
estimates an available fire flow of 3,270 gpm with a residual pressure of 20 psi at the existing fire 
hydrant on Glacier Moraine Drive.   This can be considered adequate to support this type of 
development.  The water system model simulated conditions with no well or booster pumps 
operating and all elevated storge water levels set to 10 feet below overflow elevation. 
 
5.8  Current Water System Supply Capacity 
 
The nearest elevated tank that would serve the proposed amendment area is Tower 2, located 
on Furseth Road, approximately one mile west of the site.  Tower 2 has a capacity of 300,000 
gallons and an overflow elevation of 1081 feet above mean sea level.  Assuming the water level 
in Tower 2 is 10 feet below overflow, or 1071 feet, pressures in the amendment area would range 
from 77 psi to 84 psi.  This is based on ground level elevations in the proposed development that 
range from 877 to 892 feet. 
 
The Stoughton water system is supplied by four groundwater wells, Nos. 4, 5, 6, and 7.  Well Nos. 
4, 6, and 7 pump directly into the distribution system while Well No. 5 pumps into a ground level 
reservoir, where two 1,000 gpm booster pumps are used to pump into the distribution system.  
The reported capacities are reported below in gpm and MGD. 
 
Well No. Capacity (gpm) Capacity (MGD) 


4 1,220 1.757 
5 950 1.368 
6 1,050 1.512 
7 1,080 1.555 
Total Capacity 4,300 6.192 
Firm Capacity* 3,220 4.435 


*Assumes Well No. 7 is out of service. 
 
Water system storage consist of two steel spheroid elevated tanks and a concrete ground-level 
reservoir at Well No. 5.  A summary of these storage facilities is listed below. 
 
Storage Facility Year Constructed Capacity (gallons) Overflow Elevation 


Tower 2 1977 300,000 1081.1 
Tower 3 2010 600,000 1081.0 
Well No. 5 Reservoir 1989 400,000 N/A 
Total Storage  1,300,000 -- 







Application for Urban Service Area Amendment 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive 
April 6, 2022 


 
 S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Designs-Studies-Reports\_Urban Service Area\2022.04.06 Final USAA Documents\2022.04.06 Amendment.docx 


 
 
 
5.9  Proposed Stormwater Management Standards and Best Management Standards 
 
The stormwater management system is intended to control peak runoff rates for events ranging 
from the 1-year through the 200-year (24-hour duration) event.  Additionally, runoff volumes will 
be controlled for the annual average rainfall record (per City, County and State standards). 
Stormwater quality is provided to remove 80 percent of the total suspended solids (TSS) loading 
from the site (per City, County, and State standards). Oil and grease control devices will be 
provided to treat the first 0.5-inch of runoff from the development site. 
 
Peak runoff control up to a 100-year storm event and TSS control for the site is provided within 
an existing off-site regional wet stormwater detention pond located approximately 700 feet to the 
south of the site within a 2.4-acre public outlot located just north of Business Park Circle. Note 
that peak runoff rate control will be provided at the site for a 200-year, 24-hour storm event. 
Stormwater runoff from the development site is conveyed to the regional wet detention pond via 
a combination of existing 42- and 48-inch diameter storm sewers (refer to the Existing Storm 
Sewer Map, Sheet 10).  
 
Stormwater infiltration and oil and grease control devices to serve the development site will be 
provided on-site. It is anticipated that infiltration control will be provided via an infiltration basin 
that will primarily receive runoff from the proposed rooftop areas from the development site. If 
there is a need to infiltrate paved source area, appropriate pre-treatment devices will be 
implemented. It is anticipated that oil and grease control devices that will be required for paved 
parking and driveway areas within the development will consist of Flo-Gard inlet and catch basin 
inserts.  Note that it is anticipated that stormwater runoff from off-site lands located north of the 
site will be bypassed via open ditching located along Williams Drive and will be collected within 
the existing Glacier Moraine Drive storm sewer system.   
 
5.10  Stormwater Management Facility Responsibility Parties 
 
Upon commencement of any construction projects in the amendment area, the project contractor 
will be responsible for maintaining all newly constructed stormwater facilities and erosion control 
devices throughout the duration of construction.  
 
The existing regional wet stormwater detention pond is owned and maintained by the City of 
Stoughton. Additionally, the 48- and 42-inch storm sewer interceptor that conveys stormwater 
from the development site to the regional stormwater pond is also owned and maintained by the 
City of Stoughton. Newly constructed on-site stormwater control devices to provide 200-year 
storm event peak discharge control, infiltration control, and oil and grease control will be owned 
and maintained by the private property owner and will be subject to a maintenance agreement in 
perpetuity, in conformance with City, County, and State stormwater regulations.   
 
 
  







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485601


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485601


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132495020


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132481105


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485307


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132383202


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132395002


1600 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132492402


1588 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132492310


381 E. Main Street
PARCEL # 061132492702


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380205


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380107


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380009


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 U
R


B
A


N
 S


E
R


V
IC


E
 A


R
E


A


1


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXISTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 L
A


N
D


 U
S


E
 M


A
P


2


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXISTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


PROPOSED INDUSTRIAL
USE


PROPOSED STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 L
A


N
D


 U
S


E
 M


A
P


3


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT (CURRENTLY
ZONED RURAL HOLDING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







FU
T


U
R


E
 L


A
N


D
 U


S
E


 M
A


P


4


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


CURRENT URBAN
SERVICE AREA


2022 (Current)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


FL
O


O
D


W
A


Y
, W


E
T


LA
N


D
S


, A
N


D
 S


T
E


E
P


 S
LO


P
E


S
 M


A
P


5


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


EXISTING FLOODWAY


EXISTING WETLAND


EXISTING WETLAND
INDICATOR


SLOPES:


GREATER THAN 6 TO LESS
THAN 12


12 TO LESS THAN 20


20 AND GREATER



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







S
O


IL
S


 M
A


P


6


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


SOILS



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


E
N


V
IR


O
N


M
E


N
T


A
L 


C
O


R
R


ID
O


R


7


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


EXISTING
ENVIRONMENTAL
CORRIDOR


PROPOSED
ENVIRONMENTAL
CORRIDOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E


GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE
KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


N
 V


AN
 B


U
R


EN
 S


T


ROBY ROAD


12"
SANITARY
SEWER


12" INDUSTRIAL PARK INTERCEPTOR


24" TRAIL INTERCEPTOR


10" SANITARY SEWER


24" DIVISION STREET INTERCEPTOR


2-8" SANITARY SEWER STUBS


INDUSTRIAL CIR.


C
O


M
M


ER
C


IA
L 


R
O


AD


E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 S
A


N
IT


A
R


Y
 S


E
W


E
R


 M
A


P


8


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXSTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER LINE


EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MANHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'



AutoCAD SHX Text

800'







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E


GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


N
 V


AN
 B


U
R


EN
 S


T


ROBY ROAD


EXISTING 10"
WATER MAIN


EXISTING 10"
WATER MAIN


WATER TOWER #2


E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 W
A


T
E


R
 M


A
IN


 M
A


P


9


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXISTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


EXISTING WATER MAIN


EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT


WATER TOWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

150'



AutoCAD SHX Text

300'



AutoCAD SHX Text

600'







ST


COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


ST
ST


ST
ST


ST


STSTST


ST


ST


ST


EXISTING REGIONAL
WET DETENTION
POND TO SERVICE
EXISTING DRAINAGE
AREA


PROPOSED
INFILTRATION BASIN
THAT CONNECTS TO
EXISTING STORM
SEWER (SOUTH)


EXISTING
42" STORM
SEWER


EXISTING 48"
STORM SEWER


E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 S
T


O
R


M
W


A
T


E
R


 M
A


N
A


G
E


M
E


N
T


 M
A


P


10


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXISTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT


EXISTING STORM SEWER


EXISTING STORM
MANHOLE


PROPOSED STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT


EXISTING DRAINAGE AREA


EXISTING WET POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







80'


80 '


33'


55 '


24.3'


20.7'


41.4'


FOUND IRON PIPE


FOUND 3/4" REBAR


FENCE LINE


POST


DANE COUNTY
 MONUMENT, EXISTING


SET 3/4" O.D. X 24" REBAR
(WEIGHING 1.50 LBS./L.F.)


CORPORATE LIMITS


PROPERTY LINE


RIGHT OF WAY LINE


RECORDED AS


PERMANENT EASEMENT


UTILITY
EASEMENT


SHEET 1 OF 2


LOT 1


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E


FOUND RAILROAD SPIKE
SOUTH 1/4 CORNER


THIS
MAP


TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS


CITY OF STOUGHTON


LOT 1
CSM 4494


V. 19, P. 227
DOC. 1853574


3/10/2022


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 32,


TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


784,659 S.F. (18.013 ACRES)
EXCLUDING R/W


(UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)


(SIZE NOTED)


CTH B


GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


SEC. 32, T6N, R11E


FOUND SURVEY SPIKE & WASHER
CENTER 1/4 CORNER
SEC. 32, T6N, R11E


FOUND BRASS CAP
EAST 1/4 CORNER
SEC. 32, T6N, R11E


LOT 1
CSM 14436
V. 99, P. 112


DOC. 5304607


LOT 4
CSM 15363


V. 110, P. 62-63
DOC. 5566145


LOT 3
CSM 15363


V. 110, P. 62-63
DOC. 5566145


(N
0°


 0
0'


 2
6"


W
  7


43
.3


3' 
)


(N89° 21' 30"E)


1/16 TH
 LIN


E


THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY:
HEATHER S. BARTELT OF
STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.
910 W. WINGRA DRIVE
MADISON, WI 53715
SAI PROJECT: 3701.021


SURVEYED UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF MOE FAMILY FARM, LLC.
1680 WILLIAMS DRIVE
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


1/16TH LINE


(N89°21'30"E)


(N
0°


 0
0'


 2
6"


W
)


FOUND 3/4" REBAR
AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF CSM 14436


(N89°21'30"E)


SEPV
SEPV


SEPV


SEPV SEPTIC VENT


EXISTING CENTERLINE


NW-SE


SW-SE SE-SE


NE-SE


(ALL TIES RECOVERED)


(ALL TIES RECOVERED)


(ALL TIES RECOVERED)


UNPLATTED LANDS


UNPLATTED LANDS


BE
AR


IN
G


S 
R


EF
ER


EN
C


ED
 T


O
 T


H
E


W
IS


C
O


N
SI


N
 C


O
U


N
TY


 C
O


O
R


D
IN


AT
E


SY
ST


EM
, D


AN
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
 W


IT
H


 T
H


E 
W


ES
T


LI
N


E 
O


F 
TH


E 
SE


 1
/4


 B
EA


R
IN


G
 N


0°
00


'2
7"


W


25'


66'
33'







SHEET 2 OF 2


SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE


DATED THIS                   DAY OF                            , 2022
HEATHER S. BARTELT, AGENT FOR STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 2797
STRAND PROJECT NUMBER 3701.021


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.


I, HEATHER S. BARTELT, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR WITH STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC., DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF
CHAPTER 236.34 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS AND BY THE DIRECTION OF MOE FAMILY FARM LLC,
I HAVE SURVEYED, DIVIDED, MAPPED AND DEDICATED THE LANDS DESCRIBED HEREON, AND THAT SUCH MAP CORRECTLY REPRESENTS THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES OF THE
LANDS SURVEYED AND THE DIVISION OF THAT LAND, AND THAT THIS LAND IS LOCATED WITHIN AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED TO WIT:


PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4  OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST,
TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 32;
THENCE N 00° 00' 27" W, 743.37 FEET (N 00°00' 26" W, 743.33 FEET) ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32 TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;


THENCE, N 00° 00' 27" W, 880.05 FEET CONTINUING ALONG SAID WEST LINE;
THENCE, N 89° 22' 48" E, 238.59 FEET;
THENCE, N 00° 01' 58" W, 25.00 FEET;
THENCE, N 89° 22' 48" E, 682.27 FEET;
THENCE, S 00° 01' 58" E, 905.05 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE;
THENCE, S 89° 22' 48" W, 921.25 FEET (N 89° 21' 30" E) ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.


CONTAINING 827,584 SQUARE FEET (18.999 ACRES).


SUBJECT TO ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS, RECORDED AND UNRECORDED.


TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS APPROVAL


THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR RECORDING
BY THE TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS PLAN COMMISSION


APPROVED ON:


TOWN CLERK


IN PRESENCE OF:


(NOTARY SEAL)


MY COMMISSION EXPIRES                                                    .


TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS


               COUNTY)


STATE OF WISCONSIN                )


MOE FAMILY FARM LLC.


NOTARY PUBLIC                                                                            , WISCONSIN


WITNESS THE HAND AND SEAL OF SAID OWNER
THIS                     DAY OF                                        , 2022


OWNERS CERTIFICATE


AS OWNER, WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE CAUSED THE LAND
DESCRIBED HEREIN TO BE SURVEYED, DIVIDED, MAPPED AND DEDICATED
AS REPRESENTED ON THE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP.
WE ALSO CERTIFY THAT THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS REQUIRED
BY S.236.34 OF THE WISCONSIN STATE STATUTES AND BY S75.17(1) (a) DANE
COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES TO BE SUBMITTED
TO THE FOLLOWING FOR APPROVAL:


PERSONALLY CAME BEFORE ME THIS                  DAY OF                                     , 2022,


THE ABOVE NAMED                                                                           ,
TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE SAME PERSON WHO EXECUTED
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE SAME.


PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


CITY OF STOUGHTON APPROVAL (EXTRA TERRITORIAL)


THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR RECORDING
BY THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


APPROVED ON:


CITY CLERK


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY ZONING AND LAND REGULATION COMMITTEE


DANE COUNTY APPROVAL


APPROVED FOR RECORDING PER DANE COUNTY ZONING AND
LAND REGULATION COMMITTEE


ACTION OF:


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE


10TH MARCH


                              ) SS





		Emmi Roth Initial TIF Evaluation.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		PROPOSED URBAN SERVICE AREA

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		PROPOSED LAND USE MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING LAND USE MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		FUTURE LAND USE MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		FLOODWAY  WETLANDS  AND STEEP SLOPES MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		6 SOILS MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		ENVIRONMENTAL CORRIDOR

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING WATER MAIN MAP

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING STORMWATER MANAGEMENT MAP

		Plot





		Williams Drive CSM map

		1 PROPOSED URBAN SERVICE AREA

		Sheets and Views

		PROPOSED URBAN SERVICE AREA

		Plot







		7 ENVIRONMENTAL CORRIDOR

		Sheets and Views

		ENVIRONMENTAL CORRIDOR

		Plot


















T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Emmi Roth CSM Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 4, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of April 26 and May 10, 2022  
 
Certified Survey Map (CSM) request for property located at the northeast corner of Williams 
Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive.  
Emmi Roth is proposing to develop approximately 20 acres as described above.  The CSM will 
need to be approved to divide the annexed land from the farmland.  A recommendation to Council 
is necessary.  The resolution and CSM documents are provided. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for one parcel at the northeast corner of Williams Drive 
and Glacier Moraine Drive, Stoughton, WI. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
N/A  


File Number: 
 
R -    - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


RECITALS 
 
1. Emmi Roth is requesting approval of a CSM to move forward with a proposed Planned Development 


project. 
 


2. The CSM has been referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City 
Council. 
 


3. The Plan Commission reviewed the CSM on April 11, 2022 and determined the CSM is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 


4. The Plan Commission recommends approval of the CSM by the Common Council as presented. The 
Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation. 
 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM, subject to: 
• The CSM being recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy being provided to the 


City of Stoughton Department of Planning & Development; 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Emmi Roth CSM 2022.doc 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP/PLAT APPLICATION 
FEES EFFECTIVE 1.14.22 


 
Date of Application __March 28, 2022_________________________________________________________ 
 


Applicant Name _Emmi-Roth USA_(Rob Fisher)_______________ Phone_850-251-8176______________ 
 


Applicant Email__rob.fisher@emmiroth.com__________________________________________________________ 
 


Owners Name (if different than applicant) _Tom Moe______________________ Phone_573-239-6402____ 
 


Subject Property Address _NE Corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive_________________ 


   


Application for:  CSM ___X____      PRELIMINARY PLAT ________      FINAL PLAT ________ 


 


 


CURRENT FEES 


 
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP:  $175 AND $40/LOT* 


PRELIMINARY PLAT FEE:  $450 AND $40/LOT* 


FINAL PLAT FEE:    $270 AND $40/LOT* 


 


Number of Lots:         1              .   


 


Fee Amount: $   215                    . 


 


 


  


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


Owner/Applicant Signature___________________________________________ Date_________________ 
    Special Project Manager, Emmi Roth, USA 


 


ANY QUESTIONS, CALL THE DEPT. OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT AT 608-646-0421.   


 


 *ANY ADDITIONAL COST INCURRED OVER THE PERMIT FEE AMOUNT WILL BE BILLED 


TO THE PROPERTY OWNER AND/OR RESPONSIBLE PARTY.  DWELLING UNITS INCLUDE 


EXISTING AND PROPOSED DWELLINGS. 


 


 
S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\CSM-Plat Application 2022.doc 







SHEET 2 OF 2


SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE


DATED THIS                   DAY OF                            , 2022
HEATHER S. BARTELT, AGENT FOR STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 2797
STRAND PROJECT NUMBER 3701.021


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.


I, HEATHER S. BARTELT, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR WITH STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC., DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF
CHAPTER 236.34 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS AND BY THE DIRECTION OF MOE FAMILY FARM LLC,
I HAVE SURVEYED, DIVIDED, MAPPED AND DEDICATED THE LANDS DESCRIBED HEREON, AND THAT SUCH MAP CORRECTLY REPRESENTS THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES OF THE
LANDS SURVEYED AND THE DIVISION OF THAT LAND, AND THAT THIS LAND IS LOCATED WITHIN AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED TO WIT:


PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4  OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST,
TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 32;
THENCE N 00° 00' 27" W, 743.37 FEET (N 00°00' 26" W, 743.33 FEET) ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32 TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;


THENCE, N 00° 00' 27" W, 880.05 FEET CONTINUING ALONG SAID WEST LINE;
THENCE, N 89° 22' 48" E, 238.59 FEET;
THENCE, N 00° 01' 58" W, 25.00 FEET;
THENCE, N 89° 22' 48" E, 682.27 FEET;
THENCE, S 00° 01' 58" E, 905.05 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE;
THENCE, S 89° 22' 48" W, 921.25 FEET (N 89° 21' 30" E) ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.


CONTAINING 827,584 SQUARE FEET (18.999 ACRES).


SUBJECT TO ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS, RECORDED AND UNRECORDED.


TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS APPROVAL


THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR RECORDING
BY THE TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS PLAN COMMISSION


APPROVED ON:


TOWN CLERK


IN PRESENCE OF:


(NOTARY SEAL)


MY COMMISSION EXPIRES                                                    .


TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS


               COUNTY)


STATE OF WISCONSIN                )


MOE FAMILY FARM LLC.


NOTARY PUBLIC                                                                            , WISCONSIN


WITNESS THE HAND AND SEAL OF SAID OWNER
THIS                     DAY OF                                        , 2022


OWNERS CERTIFICATE


AS OWNER, WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE CAUSED THE LAND
DESCRIBED HEREIN TO BE SURVEYED, DIVIDED, MAPPED AND DEDICATED
AS REPRESENTED ON THE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP.
WE ALSO CERTIFY THAT THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS REQUIRED
BY S.236.34 OF THE WISCONSIN STATE STATUTES AND BY S75.17(1) (a) DANE
COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES TO BE SUBMITTED
TO THE FOLLOWING FOR APPROVAL:


PERSONALLY CAME BEFORE ME THIS                  DAY OF                                     , 2022,


THE ABOVE NAMED                                                                           ,
TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE SAME PERSON WHO EXECUTED
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE SAME.


PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 32,
TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


CITY OF STOUGHTON APPROVAL (EXTRA TERRITORIAL)


THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR RECORDING
BY THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


APPROVED ON:


CITY CLERK


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY ZONING AND LAND REGULATION COMMITTEE


DANE COUNTY APPROVAL


APPROVED FOR RECORDING PER DANE COUNTY ZONING AND
LAND REGULATION COMMITTEE


ACTION OF:


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE


10TH MARCH


                              ) SS







80'


80 '


33'


55 '


24.3'


20.7'


41.4'


FOUND IRON PIPE


FOUND 3/4" REBAR


FENCE LINE


POST


DANE COUNTY
 MONUMENT, EXISTING


SET 3/4" O.D. X 24" REBAR
(WEIGHING 1.50 LBS./L.F.)


CORPORATE LIMITS


PROPERTY LINE


RIGHT OF WAY LINE


RECORDED AS


PERMANENT EASEMENT


UTILITY
EASEMENT


SHEET 1 OF 2


LOT 1


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E


FOUND RAILROAD SPIKE
SOUTH 1/4 CORNER


THIS
MAP


TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS


CITY OF STOUGHTON


LOT 1
CSM 4494


V. 19, P. 227
DOC. 1853574


3/10/2022


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 32,


TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


784,659 S.F. (18.013 ACRES)
EXCLUDING R/W


(UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)


(SIZE NOTED)


CTH B


GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


SEC. 32, T6N, R11E


FOUND SURVEY SPIKE & WASHER
CENTER 1/4 CORNER
SEC. 32, T6N, R11E


FOUND BRASS CAP
EAST 1/4 CORNER
SEC. 32, T6N, R11E


LOT 1
CSM 14436
V. 99, P. 112


DOC. 5304607


LOT 4
CSM 15363


V. 110, P. 62-63
DOC. 5566145


LOT 3
CSM 15363


V. 110, P. 62-63
DOC. 5566145


(N
0°


 0
0'


 2
6"


W
  7


43
.3


3' 
)


(N89° 21' 30"E)


1/16 TH
 LIN


E


THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY:
HEATHER S. BARTELT OF
STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.
910 W. WINGRA DRIVE
MADISON, WI 53715
SAI PROJECT: 3701.021


SURVEYED UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF MOE FAMILY FARM, LLC.
1680 WILLIAMS DRIVE
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


1/16TH LINE


(N89°21'30"E)


(N
0°


 0
0'


 2
6"


W
)


FOUND 3/4" REBAR
AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF CSM 14436


(N89°21'30"E)


SEPV
SEPV


SEPV


SEPV SEPTIC VENT


EXISTING CENTERLINE


NW-SE


SW-SE SE-SE


NE-SE


(ALL TIES RECOVERED)


(ALL TIES RECOVERED)


(ALL TIES RECOVERED)


UNPLATTED LANDS


UNPLATTED LANDS


BE
AR


IN
G


S 
R


EF
ER


EN
C


ED
 T


O
 T


H
E


W
IS


C
O


N
SI


N
 C


O
U


N
TY


 C
O


O
R


D
IN


AT
E


SY
ST


EM
, D


AN
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
 W


IT
H


 T
H


E 
W


ES
T


LI
N


E 
O


F 
TH


E 
SE


 1
/4


 B
EA


R
IN


G
 N


0°
00


'2
7"


W


25'


66'
33'












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Emmi Roth GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 7, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of April 26 and May 10, 2022  
 
Rezoning request for property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier 
Moraine Drive from Rural Holding to Planned Development – General Development Plan 
(GDP)  
Emmi Roth is proposing to rezone the above named property from Rural Holding to Planned 
Development – General Development Plan to allow some flexibility in development.  Flexibilities 
include an increase in building height and a reduction is the parking lot island requirement.   A 
public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance, staff review and 
rezoning documents are provided. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Hybrid Public Hearing on Monday, April 
11, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 
rezoning of the property at the NE corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive.  The 
request is by Strand Associates for Emmi Roth and the property is currently owned by Moe 
Family Farms LLC.  The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Rural Holding to 
Planned Development – General Development Plan.  The property description is as follows: 
 
Part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 and part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 
and part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 
1/4 all in Section 32, Township 6 North, Range 11 East, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, more fully described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the South 1/4 corner of said Section 32; 
Thence N 0° 00' 27" W, 743.37 feet along the west line of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 
of said Section 32 to the point of beginning; 
Thence, S 89° 22' 48" W, 42.02 feet to the westerly right-of-way line of Williams Drive; 
Thence, N 00° 01' 58" W, 880.05 feet along said westerly right-of-way line; 
Thence, N 89° 22' 48" E, 42.42 feet to the west line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
said Section 32; 
Thence, continuing N 89° 22' 48" E, 238.59 feet; 
Thence, N 00° 01' 58" W, 25.00 feet; 
Thence, N 89° 22' 48" E, 682.27 feet; 
Thence, S 00° 01' 58" E, 905.05 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of Glacier Moraine Drive; 
Thence, S 89° 22' 48" W, 921.25 feet along said northerly right-of-way line to the point of 
beginning; 
Containing 864,744 square feet (19.852 acres), more or less including areas within Williams 
Drive. 
 
See additional information including location map at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 925 1876 2219  Passcode: 788399 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
Published March 24 and 31, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  Emmi Roth Notice.doc 



https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Approving a General Development Plan for Property located at the NE Corner of Williams Drive and 


Glacier Moraine Drive, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval   – 0  
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base  
File Number: O -    - 2022 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
 


 
RECITALS 


 
1. Emmi Roth (the “Applicant”) has requested general development plan (GDP) amendment 


approval for approximately 20 acres of land located in the NE corner of Williams Drive 
and Glacier Moraine Drive. 


 
2. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory 


framework designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic 
design in the City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in 
the development of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for 
the land proposed to be zoned PD-Planned Development – General Development Plan, 
used for establishing base-line zoning requirements and identifying needed flexibility, is 
Planned Industrial. 


 
3. The Applicant has submitted a General Development Plan (“GDP”) Amendment for the 


property listed above.  The GDP is attached as Exhibit A to this Ordinance. 
 
4. On April 11, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing 


regarding the Applicant’s proposed zoning amendment.  The public hearing was preceded 
by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice as required by law.  


 
5. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning amendment is consistent with the 


City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
General Development Plan, subject to certain conditions.   


 
6. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 


that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed General Development Plan is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and has the potential for enhancing the 
use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 


 
 


 
 
 
 







 
ORDINANCE 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 
 


2. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 6 below, the GDP is approved.  
 


3. No part of the lands zoned PD - Planned Development may be developed until a Specific 
Implementation Plan (SIP) has been approved by the City Plan Commission. 


 
4. The following exceptions to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved:  


 
• Sec. 78-105(5)(a)(8)b. M.  Maximum building height: 


 
PI District requirement: 40 feet maximum 
 
Requested exception: 49 feet maximum 
 


• Sec. 78-604(3)(d)  Parking lot landscaping islands: 
 


Code requirement:  Parking lot design shall employ interior landscaped islands 
with a minimum of 400 square feet at all parking aisle ends, and in addition 
shall provide a minimum of one landscaped island of a minimum of 400 square 
feet in each parking aisle for every 20 cars in that aisle. Aisle-end islands shall 
count toward meeting this requirement.  


 
Requested exception:   180 square-foot islands. 


 
5. The lands zoned PD - Planned Development shall be developed and used in full 


compliance with all standards and requirements in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply 
to the specific comparable zoning district, except as flexibilities are expressly authorized 
in this ordinance or in an approved Specific Implementation Plan.  Chapter 78 of the City 
Code, this Ordinance and the approved Specific Implementation Plan will constitute the 
zoning regulations for the property, and may be enforced as any zoning regulation in the 
City of Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance and the Specific Implementation Plan shall 
be maintained and kept on file in the City of Stoughton Planning Office.  
 


6. As part of the specific implementation plan review and approval, the following 
requirements will need to be met: 


• Developer has dedicated all easements deemed necessary by the City or Stoughton 
Utilities to provide water, sanitary sewer, electric and other utility services needed 
to serve the lands in the GDP; 


• Developer has obtained approval by the City for a stormwater management plan 
and permit for development of the lands in the GDP; 


• Developer has obtained approval for the Urban Service Area Amendment; 
• Developer has obtained approval by the City for the Annexation; 
• Developer has obtained approval by the City for the CSM. 







 
7. This ordinance and exceptions provided for in Section 4 above shall take effect upon 


passage and publication pursuant to law.   
 
 


 
Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Emmi Roth GDP Ordinance.docx 







JDT:tll:cdj\S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Correspondence\_City\2022.03.28 PDP_GDP Materials\Application Letter.docx 


April 6, 2022 


Mr. Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
City of Stoughton Planning Development Services 
207 South Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


Re: Industrial Food Production and Storage Facility (Development) 
Emmi-Roth USA (Applicant) 


Dear Mr. Stacey: 


Strand Associates, Inc.® (Strand) is representing the Applicant, and, on behalf of the Applicant, Strand 
is submitting this Planned Development Application (Application) for the proposed Development for the 
purposes of developing the agricultural property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and 
Glacier Moraine Drive in Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


The Applicant is currently under contract to purchase approximately 19 acres at this site for development 
of a food production and associated office facility at this location. The Development includes an 
approximately 134,000-square-foot food production and storage facility which includes production 
space, cold and dry storage, shipping and receiving docks, and a two-story portion for office 
administration and employee welfare areas. The two-story office building will be constructed facing 
Williams Drive. Truck staging and dock areas will be located on the south side of the building with truck 
access from Glacier Moraine Drive. Employee vehicle access and parking will be from Williams Drive. 
A concept plan view of the building, parking, and truck access is enclosed. 


The Development is the only occupant of the site. The total building footprint is approximately 3.33 acres 
with approximately 5.73 of total impervious area. Approximately 12.39 acres of open space remains in 
the Development. 


The building is proposed to be constructed of a steel structure supporting a white insulated metal 
panel (IMP) exterior wall system for the cold storage and production portions of the building. Stained 
insulated pre-cast concrete wall panels are proposed for the two-story office and utility chiller room. IMP 
is a durable, high-performing thermal envelope which provides an interior finish compliant with the 
Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) standards (required for food production and storage facilities) in a 
single-wall system that can be efficiently installed in the vertical orientation. 


Additionally, the City of Stoughton municipal code requires that the parking lot islands be a minimum 
of 400 square feet at all parking lot ends, and in addition, shall provide a minimum of one landscaped 
island of a minimum of 400 square feet in each parking aisle for every 20 automobiles. The Applicant 
requests relief from the island size requirement associated with the Zone PI standard, as the size is larger 
than typical parking lot island size requirements and affects the layout and sizing of the proposed parking 
lot. 


Because of the nature of the process and product produced in the facility, the Development requires a 
significant amount of cold storage area for efficient operation. Investigation of multiple storage rack 
configurations, room sizes, and ceiling heights has revealed the most economical layout for both 
construction and operation is an approximately 200- by 300-foot area with a 46-foot clear height, which 
requires an overall building height of approximately 49 feet. The remaining production areas of the 


EXHIBIT   A







Mr. Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
City of Stoughton Planning Development Services 
Page 2 
April 6, 2022 


 


 


 
JDT:tll:cdj\S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Correspondence\_City\2022.03.28 PDP_GDP Materials\Application Letter.docx 


facility have a planned building height of approximately 38 feet while the two-story office will have an 
approximate building height of 26 feet. All portions of the facility will incorporate applicable 
code-required fire protection elements including an automatic fire suppression sprinkler system 
throughout the building as well as any additional firefighting mechanisms required by the fire 
department. The Applicant requests relief from the height limitation of 40 feet associated with the 
Zone PI standard. 
 


In general, the proposed planned development aligns with the City of Stoughton (City) Comprehensive 
Plan goal to strengthen and diversify the nonresidential tax base and employment opportunities. Upon 
completion of the project, approximately 140 jobs will be created with the potential for additional job 
creation after planned near-future expansion of the facility. For this specific location, the Development 
supports the City’s Comprehensive Plan policy to provide efficient and logical expansion areas for the 
City’s industrial parks and to provide for new commercial development opportunities on the east side of 
the community. 
 


Increasing the height of the cold storage area to 49 feet allows for the most efficient organization of the 
building program and minimizes the building footprint. The proposed layout and height increase: 
1) improves construction efficiency leading to reduced on-site waste, time on site, and embodied energy 
and carbon; 2) increases the amount of site area for planned native plantings; and 3) allows for efficient 
expansion and adaptive reuse opportunities due to the rectangular shape and standard bay spacing. 
Additionally, the project will incorporate infrastructure for a future roof-mounted solar array on the 
38-foot-high production space, contributing further to the City’s goals for sustainable development.  
 


In summary, the following is a list of requested exceptions based on the PI district requirements. 
 


1. Maximum building height to be increase from 40 feet to 49 feet. 
 


2. Parking lot island size to be decreased from 400 square feet to 180 square feet. 
 


Generally, signage will follow the requirements of Zone PI. Signage is expected to include a company 
sign, meeting the zoning size requirements, attached to the building along with a monument sign closer 
to the intersection of Glacier Moraine and Williams Drive. The general location of these is indicated on 
the enclosed drawings. 
 


Based on the previously mentioned information, the Applicant submits this Application for consideration 
and approval of the proposed Planned Development and requests support of the Development. 
 


Thank you for the consideration of the enclosed Planned Development Application and associated 
conceptual drawings. Please contact me at 608-251-4843 if you need any additional information or if you 
have questions concerning this Application. 
 


Sincerely, 
 


STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 
 
 
 
 
James D. Ternus, P.E. 
 


Enclosures 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Planned Development (PD) Review and Approval
(Requirements per Section 78-914)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a
planned development and by the City to process said application. Parts II is to be used by the Applicant
to submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City as a guide when processing said
application.


I. Recordation of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


Application fee of $_____ received by Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


II. Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use


PD Process Step 1: Pre-application


Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal
of all application materials to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review. This step is
not mandatory but optional at the discretion of the applicant or Zoning Administrator.


 A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to place an informal discussion item for the PD on the Plan
Commission agenda (if deemed necessary by the applicant or Zoning Administrator). No details
beyond the name of the Applicant and the identification of the discussion item as a PD is required to
be given in the agenda.


 B. Engage in an informal discussion with the Plan Commission regarding the potential PD. Appropriate
topics may include: location, project themes and images, general mix of dwelling unit types and/or
land uses being considered, approximate residential densities, and non-residential intensities, general
treatment of natural features, general relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and
relationship to the Comprehensive Plan.


NOTE: Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall in no way be
binding upon the Applicant or the City, but should be considered as the informal, non-binding basis for
proceeding to the next step.


PD Process Step 2: Concept Plan


The Applicant shall provide a draft application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for
determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission
agenda for Concept Plan review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (1) A general written description of proposed PD including the following:


 General project themes and images.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed
PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning
standards which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in
which they apply. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the
Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility.


 (3) A written description of potentially requested exemption(s) from the requirements of the
underlying zoning district, in the following order:
1. Land Use Exemptions


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions


3. Bulk Exemptions


4. Landscaping Exceptions


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions


 (4) A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives. The Applicant may submit
copies of a larger version of the plan in addition to the 11" x 17" reduction.


PD Process Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with a draft GDP Submittal Packet for determination of
completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for GDP
review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its surroundings,
and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed PD including:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed. This shall identify
barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard
zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the Applicant
suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements
of the underlying zoning district, in the following order:


1. Land Use Exemptions.


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions.


3. Bulk Exemptions.


4. Landscaping Exceptions.


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions.


 (4) A General Development Plan Drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 17"
electronic copy shall also be provided) of the proposed project showing at least the
following information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for
approval:
 A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the


general location of major public streets and/or private drives.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and specifically
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and
use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate areas
of large development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to specific areas
on the GDP Drawing.


 (5) General conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate locations of
foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the compliance of development
with all landscaping requirements of this Ordinance (except as noted in the listing of
exceptions) and the use of bufferyards.


 (6) A general signage plan for the project, including all
 Project identification signs.


 Concepts for public fixtures and signs (street light fixtures and/or poles or street
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or
common practices.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 (7) Written justification for the proposed Planned Development. (See Section 78-905 for
requirements of the conditional use procedure.)


PD Step 4: Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an application for
the proposed SIP with the Plan Commission. This submittal packet shall contain the following
items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning Administrator and placing the item on the Plan
Commission agenda for SIP review.
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its environs, and
the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed SIP, including:
 Specific project themes and images.


 The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The specific treatment of natural features.


 The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed identifying perceived
barriers in the form of requirements of standard zoning districts and
opportunities for community betterment through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed SIP
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed SIP and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 (4) A Specific Implementation Plan drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (and electronic
copy at 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at least the following information
in sufficient detail:
 An SIP conforming to all requirements of Section 78-908(3). If the proposed PD


is a large or group development (per Section 78-205 (11) or (12)) also provide a
proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities specifically describing
those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise areas of all
development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific areas on the
GDP Drawing.


 (5) A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying the location, species, and installed
size of all trees and shrubs. Include a chart which provides a cumulative total for each
species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area or bufferyard)
of all trees and shrubs.


 (6) A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of all buildings in the PD, including
detailed notes as to the materials and colors proposed.


 (7) A general signage plan including all project identification signs, concepts for public
fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign faces and/or
poles), and large or group development signage themes which are proposed to vary
from City standards or common practices.


 (8) A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners association, if
any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common services, if any.


 (9) A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with
the approved GDP.


 (10)A written description of any and all variations between the requirements of the applicable
PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed SIP development.


III. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


PD Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per Section
78-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision
per the Municipal Code. All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
Common Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted. The
Common Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following a
public hearing.


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on ___________ and ____________ Date: ______________



mstacey

Cross-Out







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 S
IT


E
 I


N
FO


R
M


A
T


IO
N


 M
A


P


3


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants



AutoCAD SHX Text

36"



AutoCAD SHX Text

16"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

\ST-17-22\ST17BASE.DWG



AutoCAD SHX Text

EMMI-ROTH USA, PROJECT DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

Phone (608) 838-7750;  Fax (608) 838-7752



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED: MARCH 28, 2022



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET: C-1



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, Wisconsin 53558



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-77504604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750



AutoCAD SHX Text

www.quamengineering.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILLIAMS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED BUILDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

INFILTRATION POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED OFFICE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY/PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

20' WIDE FIRE LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

MONUMENT SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED WALL SIGN







Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants



AutoCAD SHX Text

36"



AutoCAD SHX Text

16"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

\ST-17-22\ST17BASE.DWG



AutoCAD SHX Text

EMMI-ROTH USA, PROJECT DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

Phone (608) 838-7750;  Fax (608) 838-7752



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED: MARCH 28, 2022



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET: C-2



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, Wisconsin 53558



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-77504604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750



AutoCAD SHX Text

www.quamengineering.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILLIAMS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED BUILDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

INFILTRATION POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED OFFICE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY/PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHORT GRASS PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHORT GRASS PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANOPY TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NATIVE PLANTING GROUPS (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORNAMENTAL TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEADOW/WET PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCREEN PLANTINGS (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

NATIVE FOUNDATION PLANTINGS (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANOPY TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANOPY TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHORT GRASS PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EVERGREEN TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

20' WIDE FIRE LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

POSSIBLE ON-GOING AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

MONUMENT SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED WALL SIGN







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485601


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485601


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132495020


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132481105


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485307


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132383202


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132395002


1600 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132492402


1588 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132492310


381 E. Main Street
PARCEL # 061132492702


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380205


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380107


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380009


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 U
R


B
A


N
 S


E
R


V
IC


E
 A


R
E


A


1


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXISTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 L
A


N
D


 U
S


E
 M


A
P


2


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT (CURRENTLY
ZONED RURAL HOLDING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


April 7, 2022 
 
Strand Associates 
James Ternus 
910 West Wingra Drive 
Madison, WI. 53715 
 
 
Dear Mr. Ternus: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed PD-GDP - Planned Development – General 
Development Plan to develop approximately 20 acres for Emmi-Roth at the northeast corner of 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive.  A public hearing is scheduled for April 11, 2022 for 
the proposed rezoning.  The following items are identified for your review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Staff Completed 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; N/A 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; N/A 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  Provided 
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning;  Provided 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 
shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


public benefit and in regard to the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts 
created by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  


a) Land use exemptions: N/A 
b) Density and intensity exemptions: N/A 
c) Bulk exemptions: See below 
d) Landscaping exceptions: See below 
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: N/A 


 
The following is the list of requested exceptions based on the PI – Planned Industrial 
district requirements: 


• Maximum building height from 40 feet to 49 feet. 
• Parking lot island size from 400 square feet to 180 square feet. 


 
D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 


information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  
a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general 


location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided  
b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; N/A 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area 


of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and N/A 


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided 


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and 
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. Provided 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the 
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1 
through 3) to develop said written justification.  Provided 
The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning 
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to 
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final 
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall 
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of 
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.  


 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA





[- 3 -] 
 


2. The following principal and conditional uses are allowable within the Planned Industrial 
district:   
 
Office.  Description: Office land uses include all exclusively indoor land uses whose primary 
functions are the handling of information or administrative services. Such land uses do not 
typically provide services directly to customers on a walk-in or on-appointment basis.  
Parking required:  1 space per 300 square feet of gross floor area. 
 
Distribution center.  Description: Distribution centers are facilities oriented to the short-term 
indoor storage and possible repackaging and reshipment of materials involving the activities and 
products of a single user. 
Parking required:  1 space per employee on largest workshift. 
Note:  There are no residentially zoned properties adjacent to this property to trigger any 
additional zoning requirements. 
 


3. The plan should indicate the urbanization of the east side of Williams Drive.  This should 
include addition of curb and gutter, storm sewer/inlets, asphalt path extension (10 feet wide), 
and fire hydrant adjustments if necessary.  A 10 foot wide terrace is suggested between the curb 
and gutter and path. 
 


4. All off-street parking areas designed to have head-in parking within six and one-half feet of any 
lot line shall provide a tire bumper or curb of adequate height and which is properly located to 
ensure that no part of any vehicle will project beyond the required setbacks.  We suggest curb 
and gutter be used in parking lots and at key access points at a minimum.  Curb and gutter will 
help control drainage, but will also better define hard surface areas and minimize disturbance of 
turf areas. 


 
5. All driveways within the right-of-way shall be concrete.  


 
6. Since there is a paved path on the south side of Glacier Moraine Drive, we are recommending 


no sidewalk along the north side of Glacier Moraine Drive however, a 5-foot wide, 6” think 
sidewalk section is still required through the access drive on Glacier Moraine Drive placed 6” 
out from the property line.  


 
7. Curb ramps and path crossings of driveways shall be concrete. 
 
8. Driveway widths shall be evaluated for truck turning movements.  Code allows 30 feet of width 


at the property line and 35 feet at the curb.  The Plan Commission has the ability to approve a 
wider with if necessary for truck turning movements. 


 
9. Provide sidewalk connection between asphalt path along Williams Drive and building. 


 
10. Signage, trees and any plantings at the access drives and at the Williams Drive and Glacier 


Moraine intersection shall meet all (10-foot) vision corner requirements. 
 


 
 







[- 4 -] 
 


 
 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\developments\emmi roth\gdp materials\emmi roth gdp review 2022.doc 





		Application Letter.pdf

		Strand Associates, Inc.® (Strand) is representing the Applicant, and, on behalf of the Applicant, Strand is submitting this Planned Development Application (Application) for the proposed Development for the purposes of developing the agricultural prop...



		Project Delta - Stoughton Statistical Site Plan.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MAP

		Plot







		C1-Concept Site 03-28-2022.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Concept





		C2-Concept Landscape 03-28-2022.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Landscape





		Planned Development Review and Approval Site Maps.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		PROPOSED URBAN SERVICE AREA

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING LAND USE MAP

		Plot





		3 EXISTING LAND USE MAP

		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING LAND USE MAP

		Plot







		3 PROPOSED SITE INFORMATION MAP

		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MAP

		Plot











		Applicant Name: Strand Associates, Inc. - Jim Ternus

		Applicant Address: 910 West Wingra Drive, Madison, WI  53715

		Applicant Phone and Email: 608-251-4843, jim.ternus@strand.com

		Property Owner Name if different than applicant: Emmi-Roth USA

		Property Owner Phone: Rob Fisher 850-251-8176

		Subject Property Address: NE Corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive

		Date: 3/16/2022

		Application fee of: 440

		Date_2: 3/18/22

		Class 2 legal notice published on: 3/24/22

		and: 3/31/22

		Date_3: 3/21/22

		Date_4: 4/5/22

		Date_5: 3/16/22

		Date_6: 

		Check Box43: Yes

		Check Box44: Yes

		Check Box45: Yes

		Check Box46: Off

		Check Box47: Off

		Check Box48: Yes

		Check Box49: Yes

		Check Box50: Yes

		Check Box51: Yes

		Check Box52: Yes

		Check Box53: Yes

		Check Box54: Yes

		Check Box55: Yes

		Check Box56: Yes

		Check Box57: Yes

		Check Box58: Yes

		Check Box59: Yes

		Check Box60: Yes

		Check Box61: Yes

		Check Box62: Yes

		Check Box63: Yes

		Check Box64: Yes

		Check Box65: Yes

		Check Box66: Yes

		Check Box67: Yes

		Check Box68: Yes

		Check Box69: Yes

		Check Box70: Yes

		Check Box71: Yes

		Check Box72: Yes

		Check Box73: Off

		Check Box74: Yes

		Check Box75: Yes

		Check Box76: Yes

		Check Box77: Yes

		Check Box78: Yes

		Check Box79: Off

		Check Box80: Yes

		Check Box81: Off

		Check Box82: Off

		Check Box83: Off

		Check Box84: Off

		Check Box85: Off

		Check Box86: Off

		Check Box87: Off

		Check Box88: Off

		Check Box89: Off

		Check Box90: Off

		Check Box91: Off

		Check Box92: Off

		Check Box93: Off

		Check Box94: Off

		Check Box95: Off

		Check Box96: Off

		Check Box97: Off

		Check Box98: Off

		Check Box99: Off

		Check Box100: Off

		Check Box101: Off

		Check Box102: Off

		Check Box103: Off

		Check Box104: Off

		Check Box105: Off

		Check Box106: Off








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\2125 McComb CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 24, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meeting of April 26, 2022. 
 
Proposed conditional use permit request to allow an Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use 
(Brazilian Jiu Jitsu) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100. 
This request is to allow an Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use (Brazilian Jiu Jitsu) at 2125 
McComb Road, Suite 100.  The use is planned to be where the former Jacobson Brothers Meat 
Market was located.  Parking should not be an issue since the hours of operation are the opposite of 
Viking Day Camp next door.  A public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The 
resolution and related materials are provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\2125 McComb Suite 100 CUP 2022.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (Brazilian 
Jiu Jitsu) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  - 0 


Fiscal Impact: None. 
 


File Number: R- -2022 Date Introduced: 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2022 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and 
reviewed the proposed conditional use permit application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use 
(Brazilian Jiu Jitsu) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan; 


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of- 
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development; 


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\2125 McComb Suite 100 CUP 2022.docx 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (Brazilian Jiu Jitsu) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100 is hereby 
approved as presented. 
 


 
 


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote    


 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 


 
 


 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 
 


 
Council Action:  Override Vote    


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Hybrid Public Hearing on Monday, April 11, 2022 
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a Conditional Use Permit 
Application by Joseph Miller.  The applicant is requesting conditional use approval for an Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment use (Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100, Stoughton, WI. 
53589.    The property description is as follows: 
Parcel Number: 281/0511-072-2083-2 
Description for tax purposes:  2125 MCCOMB RD UNIT 100 
*This property description is for tax purposes. It may be abbreviated. For the complete legal 
description please refer to the deed.  
 
See additional information including location map at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 925 1876 2219 Passcode: 788399 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 
5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written comments will be forwarded on to the 
“Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.   
 
     
Published March 10 and 17, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Brazilian Jiu Jitsu CUP Notice 2022.doc 



https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/

























































Pr
os


pe
ct


 L
n


Es
ta


te
 L


n


K
in


g 
St


W South St


Jackson St


McComb Rd


M
cC


om
b


R
d


W


Ben
Waite Cir


R
ow


e 
St


sa
nt


 V
ie


w
 D


r


Sil verado
Dr


Hilldale Cir


O
ls


on
 C


t


Ho


Hilldale Ln Schefelke
Ke


ns
in


gt
on


Hoiby Rd


Dv
or


ak
Ct


Kenilworth Ct


¬«138 ¬«138


¬«138


¬«138 £¤51
£¤51


£¤51


Jackson St


2125







CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT   DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning     fax: (608) 873-5519 


 
      


March 4, 2022 
Joseph Miller 
118 Manilla Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment 
use (Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100, Stoughton – application provided 
3/2/2022.  As noted, additional information may be required or shown on the plans.  A public 
hearing is planned for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission meeting of which a notice will be sent to 
you.  You and/or a representative will need to attend the public hearing.  It is anticipated that the 
Common Council will act on the Conditional Use request at their April 26, 2022 meeting.   
 
1. The property at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 100 is currently zoned PB – Planned Business.  An 


Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu) is allowed with a conditional 
use permit within the PB district.   
 


2. Ordinance section 78-905(5)(c) provides the following criteria which the Zoning Administrator 
may use to evaluate the conditional use application to determine whether the request is in 
harmony with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan: 


 
a) Is the proposed conditional use (the use in general, independent of its location) in 


harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?   
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


b) Is the proposed conditional use (in its specific location) in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive plan, 
this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the city?  
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


c) Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the 
required site plan (see subsection (4)(d), above), result in a substantial or undue adverse 
impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, 
traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other 
matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the 
provisions of this chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or 
ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city or other 
governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development?  N/A 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





d) Does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property?  
The use is consistent with the Planned Business zoning classification.     


e) Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property?  The use should not 
impose a burden on utilities or services.   


f) Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use (as identified in subsections 
1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration the applicant's proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts? No adverse 
impacts have been identified. 


 
3. The Comprehensive Plan, future land use map designates the property at 2125 McComb Road 


as Planned Mixed Use.  The zoning and proposed use are consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 


4. Relevant site plan review and approval procedural requirements per zoning section 78-908 are 
as follows: 


A. Written description of the intended use.  Provided 
 


5. Regulations applicable to an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use is as follows: 
• Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all property 


borders abutting residentially zoned property (See zoning section 78-610). N/A 
• If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no 


customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible, 
of a residentially zoned property.  N/A 
 


6. The parking requirement for an indoor commercial entertainment use is as follows:  One space 
per every three patron seats or lockers (whichever is greater); or one space per three persons at 
the maximum capacity of the establishment; (whichever is greater).  There appears to be 
ample parking since the hours for this use are later in the day than the adjacent Viking 
Day Camp hours. 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator  
 


 
s:\planning\property log folder\2125 mccomb road\stoughton brazilian jiu-jitsu\bjj cup review  2022.doc 












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Lot 18 SIP Memo.doc 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


 


Date:  April 7, 2022 


 


To:  Plan Commissioners   


   


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


  Michael P. Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting   


 


Request for Planned Development - Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) approval for the 


project at the 51 West Development, Lot 18  


This is the final step in the Planned Development process which is essentially site plan approval.  


Plan Commission approval is necessary.  There are a number of conditions that will have to be met 


prior to development of this lot as outlined in the resolution.  The resolution, staff review and SIP 


documents are provided. 


 


 


  


 


   


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Approving a Planned Development - Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) for the Fifty-One Apartments 


project located at the 51 West Development – Lot 18, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request   - . 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 8 - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 11, 2022 


RECITALS 
A. Tami McCullough on behalf of Brian Spanos and Brett Riemen (the “Applicant”) is seeking SIP 


approval for Three, 3-story multi-family residential buildings at 51 West Development, Lot 18,  
Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Planned Development - General Development Plan (GDP) as approved by 
the City Common Council on March 8, 2022.   
 


C. The Property has an underlying zoning of MR-24 – Multi-Family Residential which is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan – Future Land Use Map.   
 


D. This SIP approval is based on plans dated December 19, 2021 – C-6; March 28, 2022 – G001, 
ASP 100, ASP 101, A100 A/B, A100-C, A101 A/B, A101-C, A102 A/B, A102-C, A103 A/B, 
A103-C, A200-A, A200-B, A200-C, A201-A, A201-B, A201-C, A210, A211, A212  and April 
6, 2022 - C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-5 including the project description with a revision date of April 
7, 2022. 
 


E. The proposed SIP application has been submitted with building name signage on the entrance 
canopies of each building that was not included as part of the GDP.  Additionally, the Floor Area 
Ratio is proposed to be 1.14 which includes the underground garage rather than the required 
maximum of 1. 


 
F. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed SIP and the above deviations 


from the GDP at their regular April 11, 2022 meeting and found that the plan meets the intent of 
the General Development Plan, zoning ordinance and Comprehensive Plan. 
 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the SIP for the Fifty-One 
Apartments at 51-West Development, Lot 18, Stoughton, WI, as presented. 
 
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Plan Commission Chair 
 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Planned Development (PD) Review and Approval
(Requirements per Section 78-914)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a
planned development and by the City to process said application. Parts II is to be used by the Applicant
to submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City as a guide when processing said
application.


Date: 3/31/2022 


Date: 3/31/2022


I. Recordation of Administrative Procedures for City Use 


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator


Application fee of $325 received by Zoning Administrator


II. Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use 


PD Process Step 1: Pre-application


Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal
of all application materials to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review. This step is
not mandatory but optional at the discretion of the applicant or Zoning Administrator.


 A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to place an informal discussion item for the PD on the Plan
Commission agenda (if deemed necessary by the applicant or Zoning Administrator). No details
beyond the name of the Applicant and the identification of the discussion item as a PD is required to
be given in the agenda.


 B. Engage in an informal discussion with the Plan Commission regarding the potential PD. Appropriate
topics may include: location, project themes and images, general mix of dwelling unit types and/or
land uses being considered, approximate residential densities, and non-residential intensities, general
treatment of natural features, general relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and
relationship to the Comprehensive Plan.


NOTE: Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall in no way be
binding upon the Applicant or the City, but should be considered as the informal, non-binding basis for
proceeding to the next step.


PD Process Step 2: Concept Plan


The Applicant shall provide a draft application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for
determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission
agenda for Concept Plan review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (1) A general written description of proposed PD including the following:


 General project themes and images.



tmccullough

Architect

Tami J McCullough



tmccullough

Architect

311 E Chicago Street, Suite 240, Milwaukee, WI 53202



tmccullough

Architect

262-893-4508 (cell)   tmccullough@jla-ap.com



tmccullough

Architect

Lakestone Properties LLC



tmccullough

Architect

608-838-1800  (Brett Reimen & Brian Spanos)



tmccullough

Architect

Lot 18 - 51 West Development (STH 51 & Velkommen Way)







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed
PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning
standards which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in
which they apply. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the
Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility.


 (3) A written description of potentially requested exemption(s) from the requirements of the
underlying zoning district, in the following order:
1. Land Use Exemptions


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions


3. Bulk Exemptions


4. Landscaping Exceptions


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions


 (4) A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives. The Applicant may submit
copies of a larger version of the plan in addition to the 11" x 17" reduction.


PD Process Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with a draft GDP Submittal Packet for determination of
completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for GDP
review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its surroundings,
and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed PD including:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed. This shall identify
barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard
zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the Applicant
suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements
of the underlying zoning district, in the following order:


1. Land Use Exemptions.


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions.


3. Bulk Exemptions.


4. Landscaping Exceptions.


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions.


 (4) A General Development Plan Drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 17"
electronic copy shall also be provided) of the proposed project showing at least the
following information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for
approval:
 A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the


general location of major public streets and/or private drives.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and specifically
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and
use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate areas
of large development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to specific areas
on the GDP Drawing.


 (5) General conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate locations of
foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the compliance of development
with all landscaping requirements of this Ordinance (except as noted in the listing of
exceptions) and the use of bufferyards.


 (6) A general signage plan for the project, including all
 Project identification signs.


 Concepts for public fixtures and signs (street light fixtures and/or poles or street
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or
common practices.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 (7) Written justification for the proposed Planned Development. (See Section 78-905 for
requirements of the conditional use procedure.)


PD Step 4: Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an application for
the proposed SIP with the Plan Commission. This submittal packet shall contain the following
items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning Administrator and placing the item on the Plan
Commission agenda for SIP review.
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its environs, and
the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed SIP, including:
 Specific project themes and images.


 The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The specific treatment of natural features.


 The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed identifying perceived
barriers in the form of requirements of standard zoning districts and
opportunities for community betterment through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed SIP
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed SIP and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 (4) A Specific Implementation Plan drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (and electronic
copy at 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at least the following information
in sufficient detail:
 An SIP conforming to all requirements of Section 78-908(3). If the proposed PD


is a large or group development (per Section 78-205 (11) or (12)) also provide a
proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities specifically describing
those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise areas of all
development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface



tmccullough

Highlight

PD Step 4: Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows4



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows4



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows4



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows4







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific areas on the
GDP Drawing.


 (5) A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying the location, species, and installed
size of all trees and shrubs. Include a chart which provides a cumulative total for each
species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area or bufferyard)
of all trees and shrubs.


 (6) A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of all buildings in the PD, including
detailed notes as to the materials and colors proposed.


 (7) A general signage plan including all project identification signs, concepts for public
fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign faces and/or
poles), and large or group development signage themes which are proposed to vary
from City standards or common practices.


 (8) A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners association, if
any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common services, if any.


 (9) A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with
the approved GDP.


 (10)A written description of any and all variations between the requirements of the applicable
PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed SIP development.


III. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


PD Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per Section
78-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision
per the Municipal Code. All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
Common Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted. The
Common Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following a
public hearing.


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on ___________ and ____________ Date: ______________



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows2



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows2



tmccullough

Architect

NA



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows2



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows2



tmccullough

Count Measurement

Fixtures, Doors, Windows1







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


800 W. Broadway, Suite 200  | Monona, Wisconsin  53713 | 608.241.9500 |   jla-ap.com 


 


THE FIFTY-ONE APARTMENTS (51 West) 


 


Project Location and General Description 


 
THE FIFTY-ONE Apartments will be a quality multi-family residential community serving the 


increased demand for housing in the Stoughton / Madison area.  This project will be located on 


4.99 acres identified as Lot 18, of the recently approved 51 West Neighborhood Development. 


This lot is bordered on all sides by roads: State Hwy 51 to the west, Velkommen Way to the south, 


Nygaard Road (future) to the east and Greenbriar Drive (future) to the north.   


 


The project consists of three, 3-story buildings with parking garages below grade.  Building A and 


Building B are essentially identical buildings that are rotated and share an underground parking 


garage with patios between the two buildings.  These buildings front Nygaard Street.   Building 


C is an L-shaped building located on the northwest corner of the lot and “fronts” STH 51 and the 


future Greenbriar Road. 


 


Between Buildings A/B and Building C, is a 100 space surface parking area, which includes 6 


ADA compliant parking spaces.  At the entry to each building there is also an area for 


uncovered bike parking (4 bikes each location) for a total of 12 uncovered bike parking places 


on the property.  Each underground parking garage also has ADA compliant parking spaces as 


well as dedicated vertical bike racks for tenants.   


 


Also between the buildings are large areas of green space for recreation as well as defined 


patio areas with grilling stations for tenant use.  There is also a large park planned directly east 


of the project across Nygaard Street, which is accessible by pedestrian paths on the property.   


 


Architectural Design 


 


Building Placement 
Buildings A and B hug the east setback line, providing definition to the street edge directly across 


from a proposed park.   Building C hugs the rear and side lot lines, providing additional definition 


along STH 51 and Greenbriar Road.  This meets with the design intent of the residential guidelines 


as stated in the approved General Development Plan for 51 West Neighborhood. 


 


The residential guidelines in the GDP also mention the desire for a minimum of 25% of ground 


floor units to have direct access to the sidewalk.   Although the site does have significant grade 


changes, it is the intent of the owner and the project team to maximize the number of “walk-


out” units as possible.  At this time, it is anticipated that the majority of the units facing the interior 


of the lot on all three buildings will have the ability for patios in lieu of balconies, since the grade 


is only approximately +/- 6 inches below finished floor.  In addition, on Building C, all 7 units facing 


Hwy 51 and 3 of units facing Greenbriar Road will also have patios in lieu of balconies.  Due to 







THE FIFTY-ONE Apartments (51 West)     Page 2 of 9 


March 28, 2022 (rev 4/7/22) 


the steep grade drop along Nygaard Street, there are no "walk-out" units planned for the east 


sides of Buildings A or B.  So, in summary, of the 48 first floor units, 21 will have at-grade access.    


 


The garage entries are grouped together on the north end of the property to minimize paved 


areas and to take advantage of the existing grades and drainage patterns.  There is a second 


driveway to the property on the south end, which helps minimize traffic jams and back-ups onto 


the street and separates the surface parking traffic from the garage parking traffic. 


 


Contextual input 
The theme that is allowed for Lot 18 is a Type III, per the approved Lot 18 GDP. Type III is large 


format residential development.  Since this is a new neighborhood development project, 


existing architectural context does not exist.  So, the project team began to look at other areas 


in Stoughton to begin to understand the aesthetic that was predominate as well as the history 


of the area.    


 


  


 


 
 
It is the strong Norwegian heritage in this area, however, that inspired the basic massing of the 


buildings as well as the selection of the colors and materials. Traditional Norwegian architecture 


uses simple colors and materials, shake shingle roofs and siding as well as pitched roofs with 


gable ends.  The final proposed architectural features are a modern interpretation of these 


traditional forms, with a simple color palette, varied siding types and variation in elevation 


depth.   







THE FIFTY-ONE Apartments (51 West)     Page 3 of 9 


March 28, 2022 (rev 4/7/22) 


 


         


 
 


 


Building Materials 
This project will be utilizing composite siding as the primary building façade material in a total of 


three colors.  There will be in horizontal lap siding in two colors, and a shake shingle siding in two 


colors.  Composite trim boards will be utilized as well to help with siding transitions and overall 


definition of the façade.  Where there is exposed basement walls, a masonry product is being 


called for and the roof is specified to be architectural asphalt shingles. Windows are to be vinyl 


residential windows in black or dark bronze to emphasize the verticality of the façade. 


 


Building Height 
The buildings are currently designed with a 5:12 pitch to the roof.  One of the earlier schematic 


designs had a 4:12 pitch, but the team decided it did not present enough of an architectural 


presence and low pitch roofs in Wisconsin do not usually fare well.  The pitch of the main roof 


was increased to 5:12 with the intersecting gables at 10:12 and 12:12 pitches.  This begins to 


really to capture the essence of traditional Norwegian architecture without feeling like the 


building is “all roof”.   It also begins to provide variety to the façade of the longer elevations.  


This does, however, bring the average building height to 41.13 feet for Buildings A and B and 


41.78 feet for Building C.  


Per the zoning guidelines for MR-24 District, maximum building height (per definition) is 40 feet.  


However, as part of the Lot 18 GDP, the average roof height on this lot is allowed to be a 


maximum of 45 feet above grade.  As construction documents are being completed, the 


design team will work to keep the building heights to a minimum without compromising design 


intent or structural integrity. 


 


 







THE FIFTY-ONE Apartments (51 West)     Page 4 of 9 


March 28, 2022 (rev 4/7/22) 


Building & Project Data 
At the end of this project description document are tables with additional building and project 


data as well as a copy of the ordinance and GDP for Lot 18. 


 


Site Design 


 


Zoning 
Per the approved General Development Plan (GDP) for the overall Lot 18, this property will be 


developed per criteria set forth for the M-24 Multi-Family Residential Zoning District with the 


following exceptions:  


 
• Density and Intensity Requirements 


o Allow multiple buildings on a single lot 


o Minimum of 20 feet separation between buildings 


o Maximum Gross Density (MGD): 


 32.2 dwelling units per acre 


 Maximum of 160 units 


o Impervious Areas: 53% maximum 


o Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 47% 


 


• Bulk Requirements 


o Minimum Lot Area: 1,357 square feet per dwelling unit 


o Building Setbacks (minimum): 


 Rear: West (STH 51) – 50 feet 


 Side: North & South – 20 feet 


 Front: East (Nygaard St) – 25 feet 


o Average Building Height: 45 feet maximum (to midpoint of roof height) 


o Signage: 50 square feet for ground sign 


 Measured per Sec 78-817 of Signage Regulations 


 


• Exterior Lighting 


o Intensity of illumination at Property Line: The maximum level of 0.5 foot candles 


(FC) at property line will be maintained except for the following locations: 


 At driveway access to the property where a targeted average level is 0.8 


FC with a range of 0.5-1.5 FC 


 The above averages and ranges are recommendations from the 


Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) 


 


  







THE FIFTY-ONE Apartments (51 West)     Page 5 of 9 


March 28, 2022 (rev 4/7/22) 


Requested Exemptions 
• Density and Intensity Requirements 


o The Floor Area Ratio for this project is 1.14, which exceeds the limit of 1 set by the 


zoning code for M-24.   We are requesting an exemption for this project to exceed 


that limit.  


• Signage Ordinance 


o We are requesting an exemption to the Signage Ordinance to allow signage on 


the building entry canopies to assist with building identification, in addition to 


address signage. 


 


 


Off Street Parking 


 
 


Off-Street Bicycle Parking 
 


 


Vertical Bike racks are provided in each parking garage.  Additional 


bike parking will be provided within 50 feet of each building main 


entrance for a total of 12 surface bike spaces. Surface parking 


locations are shown on the rendered site plan. 


 


Storm water management 
On site stormwater management will be employed to direct surface drainage to the stormwater 


sewer system that is being installed as part of the larger development.  


 


Landscaping 
The project drawing set provides a proposed landscape plan with the required information per 


the GDP and SIP requirements.    


 


Refuse & Recycling Storage and Removal 
Refuse will be collected within each building in a designated refuse area in each parking 


garage.  A third-party collection company will be contracted by the owners for collection. 


 


  







THE FIFTY-ONE Apartments (51 West)     Page 6 of 9 


March 28, 2022 (rev 4/7/22) 


BUILDING PROJECT DATA 


 


 


 


 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


 


 


  







TH
E
 F


IFTY
-O


N
E
 A


p
a


rtm
e


n
ts (5


1
 W


e
st) 


    
P


a
g


e
 7


 o
f 9


 


M
a


rc
h


 2
8
, 2


0
2
2
 (re


v
 4


/7
/2


2
) 


 







TH
E
 F


IFTY
-O


N
E
 A


p
a


rtm
e


n
ts (5


1
 W


e
st) 


    
P


a
g


e
 8


 o
f 9


 


M
a


rc
h


 2
8
, 2


0
2
2
 (re


v
 4


/7
/2


2
) 


 







TH
E
 F


IFTY
-O


N
E
 A


p
a


rtm
e


n
ts (5


1
 W


e
st) 


    
P


a
g


e
 9


 o
f 9


 


M
a


rc
h


 2
8
, 2


0
2
2
 (re


v
 4


/7
/2


2
) 


 



































925


915


915


920


925


930


915


915


915


920


925


930


920


<<


<<


<<
<<


<<


<< <<


<
<


<
<


<<


<


<<
<<


<<


925


915


915


920


925


930


915


915


915


920


925


930


920


<<


<<


<<
<<


<<


<< <<


<
<


<
<


<<


<


<<
<<


<<


G
G


G
G


O
H


O
H


O
H


O
H


G


C
P


OH OH OH OH OH


O
H


Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants







O
H


O
H


O
H


O
H


OH OH OH OH OH


O
H


Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants







925


915


915


920


925


930


915


915


915


920


925


930


920


<
<


<
<


<


925


915


915


920


925


930


915


915


915


920


925


930


920


<
<


<
<


<


O
H


O
H


O
H


O
H


C
P


OH OH OH OH OH


O
H


Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants







<<


<<


<<
<<


<<


<< <<


<
<


<
<


<<


<


<<
<<


<<


<<


<<


<<
<<


<<


<< <<


<
<


<
<


<<


<


<<
<<


<<


G
G


G
G


O
H


O
H


O
H


O
H


G


C
P


OH OH OH OH OH


O
H


Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants







<
<


<
<


<<
<


<
<


<


O
H


O
H


O
H


O
H


OH OH OH OH OH


O
H


Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants















































































S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 


 
         April 7, 2022 
JLA Architects 
Tami McCullough 
311 E. Chicago Street, Suite 240 
Milwaukee, WI.  53202 
 
 
Dear Ms. McCullough; 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed PD-SIP - Planned Development - Specific 
Implementation Plan (SIP) to develop Lot 18, in the 51 West Subdivision.  The following items 
are identified for your review.  Plans Dated 4.6.22 
 
1. Lot 18 in the 51 West Subdivision is currently zoned PD – Planned Development – General 


Development Plan (GDP).  The final plat has yet to be recorded so addressing has yet to 
be established.  The GDP is not effective until all conditions of the GDP ordinance have 
been met as follows: 
• Applicant owns Lot 18; 
• The Final Plat of 51 West has been approved and recorded; 
• All easements deemed necessary by the City or Stoughton Utilities to provide water, 


sanitary sewer, electric and other utility services needed to serve Lot 18 have been 
conveyed to the City. 


 
2. The following exceptions have been approved as part of the GDP for Lot 18: 


• Allow multiple buildings on a single lot;   3 buildings proposed 
• Allow principle building separation of 20 feet(40 feet typical); 
• Allow multiplex and apartments up to 32.2 units/acre by right (up to 160 units). 160 


units proposed 
• Allow impervious area of up to 53%; 
• Allow a minimum landscape surface ratio of 47%; 
• Allow a minimum lot area of 1,357 square feet per dwelling unit; 
• Allow a maximum building height of 45 feet at the median of the roof; 
• Allow a maximum 50 square feet in area for ground sign. (Measured per section 78-


817); 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


• Allow a maximum lighting intensity level of 0.5 foot-candles (FC) at the property 
line except for the following: 


*At driveway access to property where targeted average level is 0.8 foot-    
candles with a range of 0.5 - 1.5 FC. 


 
3. The following are exceptions requested as part of the Specific Implementation Plan: 


• Allow signage to be placed on the building as shown on the provided plans. 
• Allow a Floor Area Ratio of 1.135 instead of the required maximum of 1. 


 
4. The Future Land Use Map within the Stoughton Comprehensive Plan proposes Planned 


Mixed Use for this property which meets the proposed multi-family residential use.  Planned 
Mixed Use is defined as “high quality commercial, office, institutional and residential 
uses planned for areas outside of the downtown area.”   


 
5. The Planned Development District is intended to provide incentives for redevelopment in 


areas of the community which are experiencing a lack of reinvestment, or which require 
flexible zoning treatment because of factors which are specific to the site.  This district is 
designed to forward both aesthetic and economic objectives of the City by controlling the site 
design and the land use, appearance, density or intensity of development within the district in 
a manner which is consistent with the sound land use, urban design, and economic 
revitalization principles.  The application of these standards will ensure long-term progress 
and broad participation toward these principles.  Section 78-914 provides regulations which 
govern the procedure and requirements for review and approval/denial, of the proposed 
Planned Development, and to provide for the possible relaxation of certain development 
standards pertaining to the underlying standard zoning district.  The standard zoning 
district for this specific development proposal is Multi-Family Residential 24 (MR-24).  
The Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) will be reviewed according to the MR-24 
district and SIP zoning code requirements. 
 


6. The Planned Development: Specific Implementation Plan requirements per zoning code 
section 78-914(8) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall 
be provided.  Provided 


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  N/A  


C. A general description of the specific implementation plan including: 


a. Specific project themes and images; Provided 


b. The specific mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Multi-Family 


c. Specific densities and intensities as described by dwelling units per acre, 
floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; Provided 


d. Specific treatment of natural resources; N/A 


e. Specific relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 


f. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which 
identifies barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of 
standard zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


applicant suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided 
per GDP 


g. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will 
be more than met by the proposed SIP and the locations in which they apply 
shall be identified as compared to the most comparable zoning district.  (In 
this case, the MR-24 zoning district). See #3 above.  Provided 


D. A specific implementation plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 
information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  


a. A site plan conforming to all requirements of subsection 78-908(3), site plan 
review and approval requirements.  If the proposed development is a large 
development per section 78-205(11), a proposed preliminary plat or 
conceptual plat may be required by the zoning administrator;  Provided 


b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; N/A 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise area of 


all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and  
Provided per GDP 


d. Notations related to the written information provided in C a) through g) 
above to specific areas on the GDP drawing. See above. 


E. A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying location, species, and installed 
size of all trees and shrubs.  The plan shall include a chart which provides cumulative 
totals for each species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area 
and bufferyard) of all trees and shrubs.  Provided 


F. A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of the buildings including notes 
on materials and colors proposed.  Provided 


G. A general signage plan for the subject property. Provided.  The monument sign 
cannot be placed within an easement, Hwy 51 setback or vision triangle. 


H. A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners 
association, if any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common 
services. If applicable 


I. A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP 
with the approved GDP.  Provided 


J. All variations between the requirements of the approved GDP zoning district and the 
proposed SIP development.  N/A 


K. Proof of financing capability pertaining to construction and maintenance and 
operation of public works elements of the proposed development. If applicable 


L. The area of the SIP may be only a portion of the area included in a previously 
approved GDP. Complies 


M. The SIP submission may include site plan and design information, allowing the plan 
commission to combine the design review and SIP review.  Design review may, at the 
choice of the applicant, be deferred until a later time when specific site and building 
developments will be brought forth.  Site and design review is proposed 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


N. The plan commission or common council may specify other plans, documents, or 
schedules that must be submitted prior to consideration of approval of the SIP. If 
necessary. 


O. The process for review and approval shall be identical to that for site plans per section 
78-908, site plan review and approval and if the land is being divided per Chapter 66, 
Land Division.  See #7 below 


P. All portions of the SIP not fully developed within 5 years of final council approval 
shall expire.  The common council may extend this 5 year period by up to 5 
additional years via a majority vote following public hearing.  Completed portions of 
the GDP shall retain the GDP status.  See also #6K below 
 


7. Site plan review and approval procedures per Section 78-908 summarized as follows: 
A. Written description of the intended use per section 78-908(3) (a) 1-12. Provided 
B. Property site drawing per section 78-908(3) (c) 1-17. Provided 
C. A detailed landscaping plan of the subject property showing location of all required 


bufferyard and landscaping areas in complete compliance with the requirements of 
Article VI.  Bufferyard is N/A 


D. A grading and erosion control plan showing existing and proposed grades.  Provided 
E. Elevation drawings of proposed buildings.  Provided 
F. A detailed photometric plan with an illumination limit of 0.5 foot-candles at the 


property line.  The plan must meet the requirements of section 78-707.  Provided 
with exemption 


G. A development impact study is required for all forms of development that require site 
plan approval.  If deemed applicable. 


H. A detailed site analysis shall be required for any lot containing a protected natural 
resource covered in Article V, as determined by city staff.  These protected areas 
include: floodplains, shoreland-wetlands, lakeshores, woodlands, and steep slopes.  
The analysis must be submitted in accordance with section 78-908((3) (j) 1-4.  N/A 


I. Review by the plan commission in accordance with section 78-908(4) (a)-(b).  
1. The plan commission, in its consideration of the submitted complete application, 


shall take into account the basic intent of the zoning ordinance to ensure 
attractive, efficient, and appropriate development of land in the community, and 
to ensure particularly that every reasonable step has been taken to avoid 
depreciating effects on surrounding property and the natural environment. The 
plan commission, in reviewing the application may require such additional 
measures and/or modifications as it deems necessary to accomplish this objective. 
If such additional measures and/or modifications are required, the plan 
commission may withhold approval of the site plan until revisions depicting such 
additional measures and/or modifications are submitted to the satisfaction of the 
plan commission, or may approve the application subject to the provision of a 
revised application reflecting the direction of the plan commission to the 
satisfaction of the zoning administrator. Such amended plans and conditions 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


applicable to the proposed use shall be made a part of the official record, and 
development activity on the subject property may not proceed until the revised 
application has been approved by one of the two above procedures as directed by 
the plan commission.  To be determined by the Plan Commission 


 
2. In reviewing said application the plan commission may make findings on each of 


the following criteria to determine whether the submitted site plan shall be 
approved, approved with modification, or denied: 
a. All standards of the zoning ordinance and other applicable city, state and 


federal regulations are met.  
  b. The public health and safety is not endangered. 
  c. Adequate public facilities and utilities are provided. 


d. Adequate control of stormwater and erosion are provided and the 
disruption of existing topography, drainage patterns, and vegetative cover 
is maintained insofar as is practical.  


  e. Appropriate traffic control and parking are provided. 
  f. Appropriate landscaping and open space areas are provided. 


g. The appearance of structures maintains a consistency of design, materials, 
colors, and arrangement with nearby properties of similar use, which 
comply with the general architectural guidelines provided in subsections a. 
through e. below:  


   i. Exterior construction materials shall be consistent with section 78- 
    716. 
   ii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be of such   
    unorthodox or abnormal character in relation to its surroundings as 
    to be unsightly or offensive to generally accepted taste and   
    community standards.  
   iii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be so identical  
    with nearby buildings so as to create excessive monotony or  
    drabness. A minimum of five basic home styles shall be provided  
    in each residential subdivision.  
   iv. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be constructed or  
    faced with an exterior material which is aesthetically incompatible  
    with other nearby buildings or which presents an unattractive  
    appearance to the public and from surrounding properties.  
   v. Exterior building, sign, and lighting design or appearance shall not  
    be sited on the property in a manner which would unnecessarily  
    destroy or substantially damage the natural beauty of the area.  


  To be determined by the Plan Commission. 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


J. Modification of approved site plan is a violation of chapter 78.  An approved site plan 
shall be revised and approved via the procedures of sections 78-908(2) & (4) prior to 
initiation.   


K. Sunset clause.  All buildings on an approved site plan not fully developed within two 
years of final approval shall expire.  The plan commission may extend this period, as 
requested by the applicant, through site review process.  


 
Requirements pertaining to the MR-24 Multi-Family Residential District. 


1. The minimum lot area requirement is 1,815 square feet per dwelling unit.  160 units 
normally would require 290,400 square feet or 6.66 acres.  An exception was granted as 
part of the GDP approval to allow up to 32.2 units per acre or up to 160 units by 
right.  Lot 18 is 4.984 acres or 217,118 sq ft. (From Final Plat)  The SIP documents 
indicate the lot is 217,287 sq. ft. 


 
2. The district requires a minimum 90 feet of lot width and minimum 50 feet of street width.  


The lot complies with these requirements. 
   


3. The district requires a minimum front or street side lot line setback of 25 feet.  The plan 
complies with this requirement.  An as-built survey will be required to confirm 
setbacks after construction. 


 
4. The district requires a minimum side lot line setback of 20 feet.  The plan complies with 


this requirement.  
 


5. The district requires a minimum rear lot line setback along US Hwy 51 of 50 feet.  The 
plan complies with this requirement.  There is a 50-foot WDOT buffer along US 
Highway 51. 


 
6. The maximum median dwelling height allowed within the MR-24 district is 40 feet.  An 


exemption was approved to allow a maximum median building height of 45 feet.     
 


7. The maximum accessory building height allowed within the MR-24 district is 15 feet.  
We’ll need details if applicable.  This includes any pergolas.  N/A 
 


8. The maximum dwelling units per acre for the MR-24 district is 24 units.  An exception 
was approved as part of the GDP to allow up to 32.2 units per acre.   
  


9. The exterior construction material standard for non-single family residential development 
within the MR-24 district requires high quality, decorative exterior construction materials 
on the visible exterior of any portion of the building within 50 feet of an adjacent 
residentially zoned property; any portion of the building within 50 feet of a public right-
of-way and any other portion of the building visible from a public street. 
Details provided 
 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


10. There are no bufferyard requirements since the property is surrounded by road right-of-
way.   
 


11. The parking requirement for the district is as follows including garage spaces: 2 spaces 
per 2-bedroom, 1 space per 1-bedroom or efficiency.  The parking requirement is 208 
parking stalls while the plan proposes 248 stalls. 
 


12. Per section 78-704(13), residential sites having an off-street automobile parking 
requirement of 100 spaces or more, off-street bicycle parking spaces shall be provided in 
a number equal to five percent of the automobile parking space requirement. Each 
inverted-U type rack provided will count as two bicycle parking spaces.  
The "Inverted-U" type bike rack is the preferred bicycle parking rack and means of 
providing off-street bicycle parking spaces as required in this section. All bicycle parking 
provided should be on a hard-surfaced area, and be located a minimum of 24 inches from 
a parallel wall and 30 inches from a perpendicular wall (as measured closest to the 
inverted-U).  
The spaces shall be placed within 50 feet of building entrances, or where bicyclists would 
naturally transition to pedestrian mode. The placement of the racks should minimize 
conflicts with pedestrians and motorized traffic. 12 bicycle surface parking spaces are 
provided to meet this requirement while 24 interior spaces are also provided.   


 
13. The minimum paved surface setback for the MR-24 district is 5 feet from the side or rear 


lot lines and 10 feet from a right of way.  The plan appears to meet this requirement 
 


14. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) for the MR-24 district is 50%.  An 
exception was granted to allow the impervious area to be up to 53%.   


 
15. The landscaping points required per zoning code section 78-604 and Table 78-604 for the 


MR-24 district is:  60 points per 100 feet of building foundation; 60 points per 100 lineal 
feet of street frontage; Greater of: 100 points per 20 parking stalls or 10,000 square feet 
of parking area; 25 points per 1,000 square feet of building footprint.   
 
Building Foundation Requirements:  Foundation landscaping shall be placed so that at 
maturity, the plant's drip line is located within ten feet of the building foundation. Such 
landscaping shall not be located in those areas required for landscaping as street 
frontages, paved areas, protected green space areas, reforestation areas, or bufferyards.  
Climax trees and tall trees shall not be used to meet the foundation landscaping 
requirement. The intent of this section is to require a visual break in the mass of 
buildings and to require a visual screen of a minimum of six feet in height for all 
exterior perimeter appurtenances (such as HVAC/utility boxes, standpipes, stormwater 
discharge pipes and other pipes). 
 
Street Frontage Requirements:  All landscaping used to meet street frontage 
requirements shall be located within ten feet of the public right-of-way. Under no 
circumstances shall such landscaping be located within a public right-of-way. 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


Landscaping shall not impede vehicle or pedestrian visibility.  Shrubs shall not be used 
to meet street frontage landscaping requirements. A minimum of 50 percent of all 
points shall be devoted to climax or tall trees, or a combination of such trees, and a 
minimum of 30 percent of all points shall be devoted to medium trees. 
 
Paved Area Requirements:  A minimum of 360 square feet of landscaped area, which 
shall be located within ten feet of the paved area, is required for the placement of every 
100 paved area landscaping points. Said area does not have to be provided in one 
contiguous area. Sample configurations are depicted in section 78-603, above. Plants 
used to fulfill this requirement shall visually screen parking, loading and circulation 
areas from view from public streets.  A minimum of 30 percent of all points shall be 
devoted to climax or tall trees, or a combination of such trees, and a minimum of 40 
percent of all points shall be devoted to shrubs.  Parking lot design shall employ interior 
landscaped islands with a minimum of 400 square feet at all parking aisle ends, and in 
addition shall provide a minimum of one landscaped island of a minimum of 400 square 
feet in each parking aisle for every 20 cars in that aisle. Aisle-end islands shall count 
toward meeting this requirement. Landscaped medians shall be used to break large 
parking areas into distinct pods, with a maximum of 100 spaces in any one pod. 
 
Developed Lot Requirements:  Landscaping required by this section is most effective if 
located away from those areas required for landscaping such as building foundations, 
street frontages, paved areas, protected green space areas, reforestation areas, and 
bufferyards.  The intent of this section is to provide yard shade and to require a visual 
screen of a minimum of six feet in height for all detached exterior appurtenances (such 
as HVAC, utility boxes, standpipes, stormwater discharge pipes and other pipes.) 
 
The WDOT should be contacted to make sure there are no limitations for plantings 
within the 50-foot setback off of Hwy 51.   
 


16. Lighting is required for all off-street parking space and circulation areas serving 6 or 
more cars and shall be lit to ensure the safe and efficient use of said areas.  All lighting 
elements cannot be seen from any residential property.  The maximum lighting as 
measured at the property line is 0.5 footcandles.  The maximum fixture height shall be 16 
feet from grade.  An exemption was granted to allow an average of up to 0.8 
footcandles at the access points.  There appears to be no lighting fixtures planned to 
be attached to the building. 
 


17. The minimum parking stall dimension required for 90 degree parking is 9 feet wide by 18 
feet of length.  The minimum aisle width required is 24 feet.  The plan meets this 
requirement. 
 


18. Public sidewalk is required along all public frontages and shall be delineated on the site 
plan.  For this project, sidewalk is planned along Nygaard Street and Greenbriar Drive.  
Sidewalk shall be 5 feet wide and a minimum of 6” through driveways and a minimum of 
5” thick otherwise.  Public sidewalks will also be addressed in the development 
agreement. 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVILABURE_S78-603LAPOMESALALA





S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


 
19. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather 


surface and completed prior to building occupancy.  All parking spaces shall be clearly 
marked to indicate required spaces.  Expected 


 
20. Accessible parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage 


as specified by state and federal regulations.  Expected 
 


21. The maximum floor area ratio is 1.  This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of 
all buildings by the gross site area.  (246,672/217,287 = 1.135) The plan does not meet 
this requirement.  An exception has been requested. 


 
22. All access drives shall have a minimum width of 18 feet.  The plan meets this 


requirement. 
 


23. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-
residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line.  Access drives may be flared 
between the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet 
and may be exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval.  The plan meets this 
requirement. 


 
24. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and 


community standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the 
plan commission.  Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be 
used on a maximum of 50 percent of the front side of the building.  This material is not 
allowed within 50 feet of any customer or visitor entrance.  As determined by the 
Planning Commission. 


 
25. Terrace trees are required according to section 10-2(d).  An application will need to be 


filed with the Department of Planning and Development.  All terrace trees shall be taken 
care of prior to permit issuance.  For questions related to terrace trees, contact Brett 
Hebert, Public Works Director at 608-873-6303 or bhebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 
26. A gated trash enclosure with 6-foot fencing shall be delineated on the plan for the 


handling of waste.  Exterior trash shall be screened shall be completely screened from 
view and the enclosure shall be constructed of some or all materials used on main 
building.  Trash will be handled internal of the building. 


 
27. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required.  


Dane County Land Conservation, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform 
inspections.  We’ll need these materials and fees including an auto-renewing letter of 
credit for the estimated costs to the City of Stoughton. 


 
28. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown 


on the plan.  Contact Stoughton Utilities for electric, water and wastewater services.   
 







S:\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Lot 18\Lot 18 SIP Materials\SIP Materials 3.29.22\51 West Lot 18  SIP Review.docx 


29. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage.  Expected 
 
30. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation.  


Details provided on the plan.  An exception has been requested to allow signage on 
the building. 
 


31. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a 
building permit but are not necessary prior to the City review process. 
 


32. Current park impact fees are as follows: 
• Multi-family Park Facility Improvement Fee:  $2,597.00 per unit 


160 x $2,597.00 = $415,520.00 
 


• Multi-family Trail Improvement Fee: $62.00 per unit  
160 x $62.00 = $9,920.00 
 


Current total impact fees = $425,440.00     
These fees must be paid prior to building permit issuance. 


 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 
    
   Sincerely, 
   City of Stoughton 
 
   Michael P. Stacey 
   Michael P. Stacey 
   Zoning Administrator 







51 West Multi-Family 


Comments received from Mike Stacey at City of Stoughton via email on 3/30/22 


 


• Any building signage such as the proposed entry signage will require an 


exemption.  (This was done during the SIP stage recently for another PD project) 


o Per conversation with Mike Stacey on 3/31/22, Building Signage as shown 


on the elevations and renderings is currently not allowed per the signage 


ordinance.  However, we have ask for an exception as part of our revised 


SIP Project Description document.   


• The maximum floor area ratio allowed on a site is 1.  This is calculated by dividing 


the total floor area of all buildings including basement/parking areas by the gross 


site area.  (246,672/217,287 = 1.135) The plan does not meet this requirement.  An 


exemption will need to be approved. 


o Per conversation with Mike Stacey on 3/31/22, this can also be requested 


as an exemption.  Because the parking garages are included in the 


calculations it makes it difficult for the ratio to be 1.  We have requested 


an exemption in our revised SIP Project Description document. 


• I see a small discrepancy between the square footage listed on the plat vs the 


SIP documents.  (217,118 vs 217,287)  The acres listed is probably just rounding. 


o We have been trying to receive updated information or a copy of the 


official plat from MSA and did not receive in time for this update, se we 


stayed with the 217,287 SF.  


• Stoughton Utilities is reviewing the plans so hopefully we’ll hear back from them 


by next week.   (received via email on 4/5/22) 


 


After reviewing the landscaping plan with the City Arborist, we have the following info 


related to that plan: 


• Plantings at the south access point and at the intersection of Hwy 51/Greenbriar 


appear to be within the vision triangles.  The vision triangles at the access drive is 


10 feet and 20 feet along the Hwy 51 right-of-way.  It may help to include the 


vision triangles on the plan.  The WDOT should be contacted to make sure there 


are no limitations for plantings within the 50-foot setback off of Hwy 51.   


 







• The following was found on the plan: 


o Quacking Aspen can be used for a Medium Deciduous Tree not Tall 


Deciduous Tree; 


o Callery Pear is not a listed Medium Deciduous Tree and is considered 


invasive; 


o Black Hills Spruce is listed in the code as a Low Evergreen Tree not Tall 


Evergreen Tree; 


o Exclamation Planetree lists the Botanical Name as Platanus Occidentalis 


which is the American Sycamore. 


o Please see updated landscape plan for required adjustments 


The following comments were received via email on 4/5/2022 from Utility Department: 


Sheet C-1 


• Does not show either the service to building C or the fire protection but at least 


the one that it does show has a valve on it. 


 


Sheet C-4  


• They only show a service valve to Building A.  No valve shown for buildings B and 


C 


• No service valve in the street for the private fire protection service 


 


Please see updated civil sheets for required adjustments 









